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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Strategic Report
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their Strategic Report on Virgin Media Finance PLC for the vear ended 31 December 2020.

For the purposcs of this Strategic Repon. Dirceiors” Report and financial statements. the Virgin Media Finance
PL.C group will be referred to as “the group™. Virgin Media Finance PLC the entity will be relerred to as “the
company . the group headed by Virgin Media Ine. will be referred to as “the Virgin Media group™. and the group
headed by Liberty Global ple will be referred 1o as ~the Liberty Global group™

As at 31 December 2020, the company is a wholly-owned subsidiary undertaking of Virgin Media Inc. ("Virgin
Media™} which is ftself a whollv-owned subsidiary of Liberty Global ple {"Liberty Global™} As at 31 December
2020. the financial information of Virgin Media Finance PLC and its subsidiaries are included in the combined
financial statements of the ~Virgin Media group’. Virgin Media group comprises of (1) Virgin Mcdia and its
subsidiaries and (1) NewCo Holdco 5 Limited and its subsidiaries (Virgin Media Ireland). The combined
financial statements of Virgin Media group are available 1o the public and may be abtained from Liberty
Global's website at www libertvglobal.com.

The group operates under the Virgin Media brand in the United Kingdom ¢UK) and Ireland.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The group provides broadband internet. video. fixed-line telephony. mebile and broadeasting services in the UK
and Ireland and is vne of the largest providers of residential communications services in these countrics in terms
of the number of customers. The group belicves its advanced. deep-fibre cable aceess network enables us to ofter
faster and higher quality broadband internet services than other digital subscriber line (DSL) market participants,
As a result it provides its customers with a leading next generation broadband internet service and once of the
most advanced interactive television services available in the UK markets.

The group prosides mobile services to its customers using a third-party network through mobile virtual network
operators (MVNO) arrangements.

[n addition. through the Virgin Media Business brand. the group offers a broad portfolio of B2B voice. data,
internet, broadband and managed services solutions to small busimesses, medium and large enterprises and public
sector organisations in the UK.

At 31 December 2020, the group provided services o 6 million residential cable customers en its network. The
group provides mobile telephony services w 3 million contract mobile custemers and 0.1 million prepay mobile
customers over third party networks. As ot 31 December 2020, 807, of the group’s cable customers received
multiple services und 5870 were “triple-play” customers. receiving broadband internet. video and fixed-line
telephony services,

Liberty Global is an international converged broadband internet. video. fixed-line telephony and mobile services
company operating under the consumer brands Virgin, Telenet. UPC. the combined Sunrise UPC. as well as
VodafoneZiggo. which is owned through a 30:50 joint venture. Liberty Global's substanual scale and
commitment to innovation enable it to mmvest in the infrastructure and digital plattorms that empower its
customers te make the most of the digieal revolation. Leberty Global delivers market-fcading products through
next-generation networks that connect customers subscribing o 49 mallion (at 31 December 2020) broadband
internet. video. fixed-line telephony and mobile services across its brands. Liberty Global also has significant
investments in [TV, All3Media, CANAL~ Polska. LionsGate. the Formula E racing series and several regional
sports netw orks.

On 7 May 2020, Liberty Global entered into a contribution agreement with. among others. Telefonica. SA
{ Teletonica). Pursuant to this agreement, Liberty Global and Telefonica agreed to torm a S0:30 joint venture.
which will combine Virgin Media's operations in the UK with Telefonica’s moebile business in the UK to create
a nationwide integrated communications provider. The tormation of the joint venture was completed on | June
20210
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

On 30 November 2020, as part of a wider group restructure. the group disposed of its investment in UPC
Broadband Iretand Limited. The group received consideration ot £478.8 million in respect ot this and therefore
made a £66%.5 million gain on dispoesal (see note 22).

The principal activity ot the company is to facilitate the group's financing structure by implementing the group's
capital management policies. making and tacilitating external borrowings and holding investments in subsidiary
companies. The company's investments include substantially all o the Virgin Media group’s trading operating
companies.

The group’s reporting seements are based on its method ot internal reporting o Liberty Glubal wal the
information used by its chief exceutive officer. who is the chietf operating decision maker. or CODML to evaluate
segment performance and make capital allocation decisions.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the comparative profit and loss account has been re-presented se that the
disclosures in relation o discontinued operations. being the disposal of the group™s investment m UPC
Broadband Ircland Limited. relate to all operations that have been discontinued by the balance sheet date (see
note 22).

For the vear ended 31 December 20200 revenue decreased by 0.9%0 1o £4.790.3 million from £4.833.7 million
{restated) in 2019 primarily as result ot a decrease in residential cable revenue and mobile revenue partially
offset by an increase in B2B revenue. Sce turther discussion of revenue under “Performance against Key
Performance [ndicators below.

Cost of sales increased by (.7%w to £1.650.6 million tor the year ended 31 December 2020, from £1.638.5 million
{restated) in 2019. Cost of sales increased during 2020, compared to 2019 primarily due to higher MVNO costs
and an increase 1n interconnect and roaming costs. offset by a decrease in programming and copyright costs
primarily due to lower costs for certain premium and basic content and loss of exclusive pregramming content
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. a decrease i mobile handset and other device costs primarily duc tw
lower sales volumes duc to closure of retail stores as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Giross profit decreased by 1.8°6 o £3,139.7 million for the vear ended 31 December 2020, from £3.197.2 mallion
(restated) for the vear ended 31 December 2449 primarily due to the reasons detailed above. Gross margin has
decreased by (.9%% to 63.53% for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 66.1%, {restated) for vear ended 31
December 2019.

Administrative expenses increased by 30.5% to £2.818.2 million for the year cnded 31 December 2020, from
£2.159.7 mullion (restated) for the year ended 31 December 2019, This was partly driven by an increase in
depreciation associated with property and equpment additions related to the installation of customer premises
equipment. the expansion and upgrade ot  our networks and other capital initiatives. In addition. retated-party
teex und allocations, related 10 our estimated share of the applicable costs mcurred by Liberty Global's
subsidiaries increased to £325.7 million for the vear ended 31 December 2020, from £225 4 million {restated) for
the year ended 31 December 2019, These charges generally relate to management. finance. legal. technology and
other corporate and administrative services provided te or by our subsidiaries.

Finance income decreased o £437.6 million tor the year ended 31 December 20200 from £487.2 millien
irestated) (or the vear ended 31 December 2019, The lower interest income arising due 1 lower average interest
rates on related party loan receivables from other Liberty Global group undertakimgs is otfset by lower foreign
exchange gains,

Finance costs increased to £968.5 million for the vear ended 31 December 2020 trom £884.2 million (restated)
for the year ended 31 December 2019, The increase in costs was principally driven by higher losses on the fair
value of denvative tfinancial instruments in 2020, In addition. there was an overall decrease in interest payable
due lower weighted average interest rates on a slightly higher average outstanding third-party debt balance.
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS (continued)

Performance against Kev Performance Indicators
Revenue
Residential and B2B revenue includes both subscriptien and non-subscription revenue.

Residential cable subscription revenue meludes amounts received from subscribers for ongeing services and the
recognition of deterred installation revenue over the associated contract pertod. Residential cable non-
subscription revenue includes, among other items., channel carmage fees, {ate fees and revenue trom the sale of
cquipment.

Residential mobile subscription revenuc includes amounts received from subscnbers for ongoing serviees,
Residential mobile non-subscription revenue ncludes. among other items. interconnect revenue and revenue
trom sales ot mobile handsets and other devices.

B2B subscription revenue represents revenue trom scrvices to certain small or home oftice (SOHO) subscenibers.
SOHO subseribers payv a premium price to receive expanded service levels along with broadband internet. video
and (ixed-line telephony or mobile services that are the same or similar to the mass marketed products otfered w0
residential subscribers. B2B non-subscription revenue includes revenue from businiess broadband iaternct. video.
tixed-line telephony. mobile and data services offered o medium to large enterprises and on a wholesale basis.
tw other operators.

Other revenue primarily ineludes broadeastng revenue.

Revenue by major category tor the yeurs ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 was as tollows:

Restated

2020 2019 [ncrease

Revenue: £ million £ million {decredsc)
Residential revenue

Cable 3.,3499 3.400.0 (1.5)%

Mobile 610.4 6236 (2.1

Total residential resenue 3.960.3 4236 (1.6

B2B Revenuc 765.8 7431 329,

(ther revenue 64.2 70.0 (8.3)%

47903 43357 {1.9)"

The decrease in residential cable subscription resenue related te a change in ARPU was adversels impacted by
{tr the COVID-19 pandemic. most notably with respect to video services. including lewer revenue of
approximatcly £22 million associated with the loss of exelusive programming content. primanly during the
sccond and third guarters of 2024, comprising (a) credits that were given to certain customers and {b) the
estimated impact of certain customers cancelling their premium sports subscriptions. and (1) lower revenue
related to regulared contract notifications.
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS (continued)

For the vear ended 31 December 2020, mobile revenue decreased to £610.4 million from £623.6 million
irestated) in 2019, The decrease in mobile revenue relates to a decrease m non-subscription revenue from mobile
handset sales, This is partially offser by an increase in residential mobife subsceription revenue primarily due to
an merease in the average number of mobile subscribers, partially offset by lower ARPU in the UK.

The increase in B2B subseription revcnue is primartly due to an merease in the average number of broadband
internet SOHO subscribers in the UK. The decrease in B2B non-subscription revenue is primarily atinibutable to
our operations in the UK., including the net effect of (1) an increase in uptront revenue recognised in association
with long-term leases of a portion of our network, (1) lower revenue from data services. (i) a decrease in
revenue related to business network services and () lower revenue from wholesale fixed-line telephony
SCTVICES,

Summary residential cable statistics

Selected statstics for the group’s residential cable customers are shown below:

Restated
2020 2019
Total cable customers 5,626,700 S518.100
Cable products:
Broadband internet 5,426,100 3271000
Video 3,498,000 3687400
Fixced-line telephone 4,463,200 4.603 500
Total cable products 13,381,300 3.563.900
Cable products per customer (i) 2.38x 2.46x
Triple play penctration 58.2% 6H1.8%
Cable ARPU (1) £50.190 £49.39

(1) Each telephone, television and broadband internet subscrber directly connected to the Virgin Media group’s
network counts as one product. Accordingly. a subscriber whe recenves both telephone and television services
counts as two products. Products may include subscribers receiving some services ftor free or at a reduced rate in
connection with promotional offers.

{ily Cable ARPU 1s calculated by dividing the average monthly subscription revenue (excluding interconnect
tees. channel carriage fees and late fees) tor the ndicated period. by the average of the upening and closing
number of customer relationships tor the period.

The total number ot cable products ftell w 13.381.300 at 31 December 2020 trom [3.363.900 at 3] December
2019, representing a net decrease in products ot 182,600,

Swummury mobile statitics

Sclected statistics for the group’s mobile customers are shown below:

2020 2019
Postpard mobile customers {1) 3,223.900 2.915.600
Prepaid mohile customers (1) 134 400 263,900
Total mobile customers 3,358,300 3,179,500
Mobile ARPU (ii) £8.44 £8.98

Ln
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS (continued)

{1) Our mobile subscriber count represents the number of active subscriber identification medule (SIM) cards in
service rather than services provided. For example. if a mobiie subscriber has both a data and voice plan on a
smartphone this would cquate to one mobile subscriber. Alternatively, a subscniber who has a voice and data
plan for 2 mobile handset and a data plan for a laptop (via a dengle) would be counted as two mobile subscribers.
Customers who do not pay a recurring monthly fee are excluded trom our mobile subscriber counts after a 30
day period of inacuvity.

(i) Mobile monthly average revenue per user (“hobilc ARPUT) is caleulated by dividing the average monthly
mobilc subscription revenue iexcluding sales and late fees) for the indicated period by the average of the
opening and ¢losing balanees of total mobtle subseribers in service for the peried.

The group added 308.300 postpaid subscribers in 2020, Growth in pesipaid subscriptions was offset by a lower
prepaid base. resulting in an overall increase in the group’s mubile base of 178.800 in 2020}

FINANCING

As of 31 December 2020, the group had £12.776.4 million of tinancial liabilities compared with £12,494.8
millien as at 31 December 2019, The principal changes to financial habilities during the year are discussed as
follows:

Trade Receivables Transaction

n May 2020. Virgin Media Trade Receivables Financing ple, a third-party special purpose financing entity. was
created for the purpose of facilitating the olfering of certain notes. These notes are collateralized by certain trade
receivables of Virgin Media. creating a variable interest ip which Virgin Media is the primary beneficiary and.
accordingly, Virgin Media. and ultimately Liberty Global. are required to consolidate Virgin Media Trade
Receivables Finanoing ple. The effering of these notes resulted in net proceeds of £214.4 million {“the May 2020
proceeds’).

Senior Notes Transactions

in June 2020. the group ssued 2030 semor notes with principal amounts ot $673.0 million. The net proceeds.
together with the May 2020 proceeds were used 10 redeem in full €460.0 million and $388.7 million outstanding
principal amount of 2025 senlor notes.

In June 2020. the group issucd an additional 2030 senior notes with principal amounts of $230.0 million and
€300.0 million. The net procecds from the issuance of these notes were used (1 to redeem in full $497 0 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2024 seror notes and SE23.1 muilion and £44.1 million outstanding
principal amounts of existing 2022 senior notes and (2) for general corperate purposes.

The new secured notes rank pari-passu with the group's existing secured notes and subject to certain cxceptions.
share in the same guarantees and security granted in favour of its existing secured notes.

Senior Secured Notes Transactions

In June 2020, the group issued 2030 senjor secured notes with principal amounts of $650.0 million and £450.0
millien. The net proceeds from the issuance of these notes were used (1) to redeem in full £525.0 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2027 senior secured notes. (2) to redeem in tull £360.0 mallion
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2029 senior secured notes and (3} to redeem n {ull £80.0 milien of
the £321.3 million vutstanding principal amount of exisung 2025 senier secured notes.

in November 2020, the group issued, via a private placement 2030 senior secured notes with principal amounts
of S263.0 million, £235.0 million and £39.0 million. The net proceeds trom the issuance of these notes were
used 1 1) redeem in full £441.2 million outstanding principal amounts of existing 2023 senior secured notes and
(2} tor general corporate purposes.

The new sentor secured notes rank pari-passu with the group’s existing senior secured notes and semor secured
credit fagility, and subjeet o certain exceptions. share in the same guarantees and security granted in fas our of
its existing senior secured notes.
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FINANCING (continued)

Vendor Financing Notes Transactions

In June 2020, Virgin Media Vendor Financing Notes 11 Designated Activity Company { Virgin Media Financing
[II Companv) and Virgin Media Vendor Finuncing Notes [V Designated Activity Company (Virgin Media
Financing [V Company. and together with Virgin Media Financing [l Compuany. the 2020 VM Financing
Companies) were created for the purpose ot issuing certain vendor financing notes. The 2020 VM Financimg
Companies are third-party special pumpose financing entities that are not consolidated by Virgin Media or
Liberty Glebal.

Virgin Media Financing 111 Company issued vendor financing notes with principal amounts ol £300.0 million
and £400 0 million. Virgin Media Financing [V Company issued vendor hnancing notes with principal amounts
ot $300.0 million. The net procecds from the June 2020 Vendor Financing Notes were used by the 2020 VM
Financing Companies to purchase certain vendor-financed receivables of Virgin Media and its subsidiaries from
previvusly-existing third-party special purpose tinancing entitics, Virgin Media Receivables Financing Notes [
Destgnated Activity Company and Virgin Media Receivables Financing Notes [1 Designated Activity Company
{the Original VM Financing Companies) and vanous other third parties.

Other 2¢20 Financing Transactions

In Scptember 2020, in connection with the formation of the UK JV on | June 2021, the group entered into a
£1.300.0 million term loan facility, At 31 December 2020. the term loan tacility is undrawn and only available to
be drawn and utilised upon consummation of the UK JV. Accordingly the group’s unused borrowing capacity at
31 December 2020, excludes the availability ot the term loan facility.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The group is cxposed to volatility in its cash flows and earnings resulting from changes in intercst rates and
forcign currency exchange rates. The group has entered into various derivative instruments with a number of
counterpartics 10 manage this volatility ol its cash tlows and carnings.

The group has entered into cross-currency interest rale swaps o manage mterest rale and forcign exchange rate
currency exposures resuliing from the vanable and fixed rates of interest paid on borrowings that arc
denuminated in a currency other than the functional currency of the borrowimg entity. Addinonally. the group
has cntered into interest rate swaps to manage interest rate exposures resulting from the variable rates of interest
paid on sterling denominated debt ubligations and movements in fair value on certain of its sterling denominated
debt. The group has also entered into torward rate contracts to manage forcign cxchange rate currency cxposures
related to certain committed and torecasted purchases. Sec note 21 to the group firancial statements tor further
informartion on the group’s derivative instruments.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Financial risk management

Details of the financial risks and how they are managed are outlined in note 20 to the group financial statements.
The principal tinancial risks faced by the group are credit risk. interest rate risk. forcign exchange rate risk and
liquidity risk.

Principal non-financial risks

Virgin Media Firance PLC is a member of the Virgin Media group. which manages the principal non-financial
risks and uncertaintics and 15 headed by Virgin Media [ne. These risks. amoeng others, are discussed in more
detail in the combined financial statements of the Virgin Media group. The principal nen-tinanctal risks include
the tollowing:

e cconomic and business conditions and industry trends m the United Kingdom {UK) and [reland:

e the competitive cnvironment in the breadband intemet. cable television and telecommunications
industries in the UK including competitor responses to our products and services.

¢ fluctuations in curreney cxchange rates and interest rates:

e instability in global financial markets. including sovereign debt issues in the European Unmion (EUY and
related fiscal retorms:
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

consumer dispusable income and spending levels, including the avatlabifity and amount ot indis iduai
consumer debt:

changes in consunier television viewing and broadband mtemnet usage preferences and habits:

consumer acceptance of our existing service ofterings. including cur broadband intemet. cable
television, tixed-ling telephony and mobile and business service offerings. and of new technology,
programming alternatives and other products and services that we may offer in the future:

the group’s ability to manage rapid technologicat changes:

the group’s ability t maintain or increase the number of subscripuons to our cable television,
broadband inwernct. fixed-line telephony and mobile service offerings and our average revenue per
houschold:

the group’s ability o provide satisfactory customer senwe. including support for new and evelving
products and services:

the group’s ability 10 maintain or ingrease rates to our subscribers or to pass through increased costs to
our subscribers:

the impacr of the group’s furure financial performance. or marker conditions generally, on the
availability. terms and deployment of capital:

changes in. or failure or inability 1o compiv with. govemment regulations in the UK and adverse
outcomes trom regulatory proceedings:

government intervention that impairs the group’s competitive position, including any intervention that
would open the group’s broadband distribution networks to competitors and any adverse ¢change m the
group’s accreditations or licenses:

the group’s ability to obtain regulatory approval and satisfy other conditions necessary to close
acquisitions and dispositions. and the impact of conditions imposed by competition and other regulatory
authorities in connection with acquisitions:

the group’s ability 1o successtully acquire new businesses and. if' acquired. te integrate. realise
anticipated cficiencics trom. and implement cur business plan with respect to. the businesses we have
acquired or that we expect to acquire:

changes i laws or treaties relating o taxation. or the interpretation thereof. in the UK

changes in laws and govemment regulations that may impact the availability and cost ot capital and the
Jerivative mstruments that hedge certain of the group’s financial risks:

the ability of supplicrs and vendors (including our third-party wireless network providers under the
group’s MVNO arrangements) 10 timelv deliver quality products. equipment. sottware, senvices and

dCCess!

the availability of attractive programming tor our video scrvices and the costs associated with such
programmung:

uncertamtics mherent in the develepment and integranon of new business lines and business strategics:

the group’s ability to adequately forecast and plan future network requirements, including the costs and
benefits associated with the network extension:
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES {continued)

e the avallabihty of capital for the acquisition and or development of telecommunications networks and
seTvices:

*  probicms the group may discover post-closing with the operations, including the internal controls and
finzncial reporting process of businesses we acquire:

e the leakage of sensitive customer data:

s the outcome of any pending or threatened Litigation:

e the loss of key employees and the availability of qualitied personnel:

e changes in the nature of key strategic relationships with partners and joint venturers:

* adverse changes in public perception ot the ~“Virgin™ brand. which we and others Tieense trom Virgin
Enterprises Limited, and any resulting impacts on the goodwill ot customers teward the group: and

e cuvents that are outside of the group’s control. such as political unrest in international markets. terrorist
attacks, malicious human acts, natural disasters. pandemics or epidemics (such as the ceronavirus
(COVID-19)) and other similar events.

Brexit

The UK's departure from the Furopean Union (EU) could have a material adverse effect on our business,
tinancial condition, results of eperations or liquidity. On 23 Junc 2016, the UK held a referendum in which
voters approved. on an advisory basis. an exit from the LU. commonly referred to as Brexit™

The UK tormally exited the EU on 31 January 2020. On 24 December 2028, the UK and the EL reached the
“Trade and Cooperation Agreement.” referred to as the EU-UK Agreement. On 3{ December 2020, the EU-UK
Agreement was approved by the UK Parliament. with retrospective ratification from the EU Parliament expected
to follow in 2021,

[n the meantume. the EU-UK Agreement has been provisionally brought into cffect. The EU-UK Agreement
focuses on lour main sectors. namely trade. economic and social cooperation. security and governance.

Examples of the potenual impact Brexit could have on our business. tinancial condition or results of operations
include:

¢ changes in foreign curreney exchange rates and disruptions in the capital markets:

e shortages of labour pecessary o conduct our business. including our network cxtension in
the UK:

e disruption to our UK supply chain and related increased cost of supplies:
e awecakened UK economy resulting in decreased consumer demand for our products and services in the
UK:

e legal uncertainly and potentially divergent natienal laws and regulanions as the UK determines
which EU laws and directives to replace or replicate. or where previously implemented by

enactment of UK laws or regulations. to retain, amend or repeal: and

e arious geopoliical forces mav impact the global ceconemy and our business. including. for
cxample, other EU  member states  (in particular  those member  states where we  have
operations) proposing referendurns to. or electing to. exit the EU.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES {continued)
COVID-19

In March 20240, the World Health Grganization declared COVID-19 to be a global pandemic. in response to the
COVID-19 pandcmic. emergency measures have been imposed by governments worldwide. including travel
restrictions. festrictions en sucial activity and the shutdown of nen-essential businesses.

The global COVID-19 pandemic continues to adversely impact the economics of the countries in which we
operate. However. during the first quarter of 2021, the adverse impact on our company centinued to be velatively
minimal as demand for our products and sen ices remained strong.

It is not currently possible to estimate the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic or the adverse
cconomic impact resulting trom the preventative measures taken to contain or minigate 1ts outbreak. theretore no
assurance can be given that an extended period of global economic disruption would not have a material adverse
impact on our business. financial condition and results ot operations in future periods.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The dircctors will continue to review management policies in light of changing trading and market conditions.
Further detail of the future outlook of the group. is provided in the combined tinancial statements of the Virgin
Media Group for 2020, which are available trom the company secretary at Virgin Media. 300 Brook Drrve,
Reading. United Kingdom, RGZ 6UU and on Liberty Global's website at www libertyglobal.com.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

This statement is intended o disclose how our directors have approached und met their responsibilities under
s172 Companies Act 2006.

[n {ine with Liberty Global's goal of enhancing the long-term value for the benefit of its shareholders. the
directors of the Virgin Media oversee the management of the group. to help assure that the interests ot our
sharcholders are served.

The directers of the group, apply the Corporate Governance Guidelines (page 14). essenual to our business
integrity and performance. Therefore, as part of group operations as a whele consider:

* long-term consequences of decisions:

«  cmplovees’ Interests:

¢ business relationships with suppliers and customers:

e the impact of our operations on the ent ironment and communities in w hich we vperate: and

s the need to act fairly between sharcholders.

The level of engagement of the dircetors is critical in the group’s suceessful inyestment in the infrastructure and
plattorms that empower our customers to make the most of the digital revolution and connect to the
entertainment. experiences and people they love. We believe that our scale and synergies with our partners help
bring the best copnectivity and entertwinment o our customers and. dunng 2020 the directors provided
thoughtful guidance to ensure that we enhanced and expanded our networks wisely. investung with purpose in
the technology. talent and territories with the most potennial.

Customers/Partnerships — Virgin Media provides its customers with a leading. next-generation broadband
service. one of the most advanced interactiv e television services available inthe UK market and mobife services.
We believe our relationships with our partners help us deliver unique products and services 1o our customers.
The continued strategic involvement by the directors in these decisions o help toster these relationships is
critical to the group's long term success.

10
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)

Responsibility — Community, Envirenment & Suppliers — As part of Virgin Media’s strategy. wc are
commitied to growing a responsible and sustainuble business. Our vision of using digital to make good things
happen tocuses on two pillars. growing responsibly and sustainably and doing more good with digiial. As
outlined in the Directors” Report, we have vutlined five sustainability goals to ensure that our growth and
contribution to the UK is delivered in a way that’s good for people and the environment.

People - At Virgin Media. we know building an inclusive environment is essential to our growth, We're working
on building a fully inelusive culture. celebrating everybody s individuality and differences. We want o empower
our people. so they feel valued. limitless and inspired 1o help build meaningful connecuons. The Directors®
Report provides further information on Virgin Media's policy on employment and disabled emplovees.

Consideration of these tactors and other relevant matters 1s embedded into all Virgin Media group decision-
making. strategy development and risk assessment throughout the year. Further information is available on our
website: hitps: -www virginmedia.com corporate sustamnability and o the consolidated accounts of Liberty

Global ple which are available on Liberty Global's website at www libertyglobal.com.

On behalf ol the board

L Milner

Director

28 June 2021



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements tor the group and company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The group made a pretit for the year. after tax. of £661.2 million (2019 £377.1 million). The dircctors have not
recommended the payment of a dividend (2019 £aib).

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

The directors who served during the vear and thereatier were as tollows:
W T Castell (resigned % March 2020)

M T Fries (resigned § June 2021

M O Hitz

R G McNeil {appointed 9 March 20201

L Milner (appointed 1 March 2021

$-P Pascu (appeinted 3 March 2020. resigned 16 November 20203

C B E Withers (appointed 23 April 2020}

The dircctors of the company have been indemnitied against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third
partics. subject to the conditions set out in the Companics Act 2006, Such qualitying third party indemnity
provision 1s in foree for directors serving durimg the financial year and as at the date of approving the Directory’
Report.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND DISABLED EMPLOYEES

The group remains committed to the continuing introduction and practice of progresstve employment policies
which retlect changing business. social and emplovee needs.

The group amms to ensure that everyone connected to it is treated fairly and cqually. whether they are a current or
former member of staff. job applicant. customer or supplicr.

Nobody should be discriminated against. either directly or indirectlv. on the grounds of gender. gender
reassignment, marital status. pregnaney. race. ethnic engin. colour. nationality . national origin. disability. sexual
orientation. religion or belief. age. political atfiliation or trade union membership. The policy applics to anyone
who works for, who has worked for or who applics w work for Virgin Media or its partners. That means
permanent, temporary, casual or par-time statf. anvone on a fixed-term contract. agency staft and consultants
working with the group, ex-employees and people applying for jobs. This applics w all aspects of emplovment,
including recruitment and tramming.

The group gives full consideration to applications tfrom employees with disabilities where they cun adequately
fulfil the requirements of the job. Depending on their skills and abilities. emplovees with a disability huve the
same opportunites for promotion. career development and training as other employees. Where existing
emplovees become disabled. it is the group’s policy 10 provide continuing emplovment wherever practicable in
the same or an alternative position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this aim.

In line with Liberty Global's *Code of Business Conduct” (the “Code™). the group’s emplovees and directors are
cxpevted to display responsible and cthical behan iour. to tellow consistently beth the meaning and intent ot this
Code and 10 act with integritv in all of the group’s business dealings. Managers and supernvisors are expected 1o
take such action as s necessary and appropriate 1o ensure that the group’s business processes and practices are in
tull compliance with the Code.
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EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND DISABLED EMPLOYEES (continued)

Emplovee Involvement
The group is dedicated 1o increasing the practical involvement of individuals in the running ol its business. [t
seeks to achieve this as follows:

» all employces are encouraged to understand the aims of the group and of their own business arca and
contribute to improving business performance through their knowledge. experience, ideas and
suggestions. This requires strong communication to ¢nsure that employvees are bricled as widely as
pussible about activities and developments across Virgin Media. The online news channel. open
forums. newsletters and team meetings play impoertant roles in this. as do the development of people
management skills and the ongoing conversations about performance and development which underpin
pertormance con ersations:

» the group ensures that all employees are involved and consulted through “Voice™ which operates at a
national. divisional and local Tevel. 1t enables employees and employers to have an open and transparent
relationship with a flow of informatien. [1is focused around sharing iotormation, mvolving employces
in deciston making, gaining aceess o knowledge and expericnee or resolving differences of opinion.
Involving emplovees in decision making cnhances contidence and job satisfaction. creates a sense of
helonging and empowerment, reduces stress and mpacts positively on wellbeing,

The group fosters a team spint among employees and their greater invoivement by otfering participation in
bonus or local varnable reward schemes and team development opportunities. Virgin Media also operates various
recognition schemes which are designed to reward employees tor behaviours which are consistent with the
Virgin Media values and has a velunteering scheme which allows employees to take five days each year to
volunteer with registered charities or ergamisations of their choice.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES

Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability

Virgin Media has a comprehensive tive year sustainability strategy in place which sets out how we will support
and conneet communities across the UK, reduce our impact on the envirenment and continue to become a more
in¢lusive company.

Our strategy is called the “Meaningful Connections Plan™ and we have set tar-reaching goals across three key
arcas: people. the planet and communities.

People

Virgin Media will ¢reate new opportunities tor hundreds of people from underrepresented communities so they
can access skills and emplovment. This includes women in STEM. disabled people. people from LGBTQ,
underrepresented ethnicities. neurodiverse and other communities with low social equity.

Planet
Virgin Media has sct goals to achieve net zere carbon operations (Scopes | and 2) and zero waste operations by
the end of 2025,

This will be achieved via energy elficiency measures. cutting emissions. sourcing renewable power supply and
reducing waste by increasing reuse malterials across our products and operations.

Communities
Virgin Media will use its connectivity and presence in tewns and eities natienwide to support projects which
create 1.5 million meaningtul connections to create greater community belonging.

Virgin Media has also begun a five vear strategic partnership with the chanty, Carers UK. which will use
technology and innovation to address the lonchiness experienced by cight out of ten unpuid carers, und witl work
together to connect more carers to cach other and to their communities.

The company and group made no polincal contributions during the tinancial yeur that would require disclosure
(2019 - £rul).
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES (continued)

A member of Virgin Media's Executive Commutiee is responsible for each of the three key areas of the
Meaningtul Connections Plan. The strategy has been developed by Virgin Media's Sustainability team which
annually reports progress being made agamnst long-term goals.

Throughout 2020, Virgin Media continued to make progress on social and environmental geals. highlights
include:

s Since 2018, 1.204.427 disabled people have accessed the Support to Work employment service -
funded by Virgin Media and our previous chanty partner. Scope. This has helped disabled people two
gain the skills and confidence to get and stay in work:

e Since 2019, Virgin Media's operauonal carbon footprint (Scope 1&2) has reduced by 776 across UK
and Ireland and 46% against our previcus 201+ baseline:

+  Alsodelivered a 13% reduction in scope 3 emissions since 2019 baseline: and

Virgin Media continues to source 100%, of electricity trom renewable sources as a member of the
REI00 initiative and in November 2020 became a founding signatory of the Media Climate Pact. [n
addition. Virgin Media also achiey ed zero waste to landfill across all site based and logistics operations.

Virgin - Media communicates  regularly  updates on performance  and  key  highlights via
www virginmedia.com:sustainability.

GOING CONCERN

As Virgin Media Finance PLC is cither a direct or indirect parent of all of the trading companics in the Virgin
Media group. these consohidated financial statements include substantially all of the trade and assets of the
overall Virgin Media group. Whilst forecasts and projections, which take account of reasonably possible changes
in trading performance. have not been prepared at a Virgin Media Finance PLC group level. they have been
preparcd for the Virgin Media group as a whole. These forecasts and projections showed that cash on hand.
tegether with cash from operations and the undrawn revolving credit facility. are expected to be sutficient for the
Virgin Media greup’s and henee the group’™s cash requirements through to at feast {2 months from the date of
this report.

Taking into account these forecasts and projections and after making enquirtes, the directors have a reasenable
expectation the group has adequate support and resources to continue in operational existence for at least 12
months trom the date of the signing of these financial statements.

For these reasons the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis 1 preparing these financial statements.
Consideration of the ongoing impact of COVID-19 has not altered this conclusion.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The group is committed 10 conducting business with honesty. integrity and respect. Corporate govemance atfects
the wayv the group direets its telationship with its stakeholders. The group believes that the highest standards of
corporate governance are gssential to the group’s business integritv and pertormance. The group has adopted a
number of policies and procedures to support solid corporate governance in every area of the group’s operations.
Corporate Governanee Guidelines adopted by Liberty Global ple’s Board of Dircctors senve as a framewerk for
Board govemance over the atfairs of the group for the benefit of its sharcholders. These include Code of
Business Conduct. Code of Ethics. Audit Committee Charter. Compensation Committee Charter. Nominating
and Corporate Guvernance Committee Charter and Succession Planning Committee Charter.

Further information on Corporate Guyernance 15 available to the public on Liberty Global's website at
www . hibertvglobal.com or under the heading “Corporate Responsibihiy " The information on the websiie s not
part ot this report.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Disposal of investments in subsidiarics
On 4 March 2021, as part of a wider group restructure. the group disposed ot its investments m Cullen
Broadcasting Limited and Tullamore Beta Limited.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report s aware. there 15 no relevant audit
information. being information required by the auditor in connection with prepaning its report. ot which the
auditor is upaware  Having made enquiries of fellow direetors and the group’s auditor. cach director has taken
all the steps that hesshe is obliged to take as a director in order to make himself herselt aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the audntor is aware of that information.

AUDITOR

KPMG LLP will be re-appointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006,

This repurt was approved by the board on 28 June 2021 and signed on its behall

A

C B E Withers
Director



Virgin Media Finance PLC

Statement of Directors' Respoasibilities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and
Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial
statemenis in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law reguires the directors W prepare Group and parent Company financial statements tor cach
financial year. Under that the law thev are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
intermational accounting standards in contormity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law and they have ¢lected to prepars the parent Company financial statements n accordance with UK
accounting standards and applicable. including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satistied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of aftairs ot the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for
that period. In preparing each of the Group and Parent company financial starements. the directors are required
1o

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:
*  mike judgements and estimates that are reasonable. relevant, reliable and prudent:

e for the Group financial stalements. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

o for the parent Company linancial statements, state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been
followed. subject W any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+  assess the Group and parent Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable.
matters related to going concern: and

¢ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent
Company or to cease operations. or have no realistc alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible tor keeping adequate accounting records that are sutticient to show and explain the
parent Company’s transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
parent Company and chable them to ensure that 15 financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are responsible for such inernal control as they determine i5 necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are tree from material misstaternent. whether due to fraud or error. and have general
responsibility for taking such steps asy are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregulantics.

Under applicable faw and regulations. the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and a
Directors’ Report that complies with that law and those regulations.

The directors arc responsible for the maintenance and mntegrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemunation of
tinancial statements may ditfer from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Virgin Media Finance PLC

| Our opimon is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Virgin Media Finance ple (“the Company ™) [or the vear ended 31
December 2620 which comprise the group income statement and statement of comprehensive income, group
balance sheet. group statement of changes of cquity. group cash flow staternentl. company balance sheet.
company statement of changes in cquity. and the related notes, including the accounting policics in note 2 in the
consolidated tinancial statements and note 2 in the company financial statements.

In our epinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state ot the Group's and of the parent Company’s
atfairs as at December 31, 2020 and ot the Group’s profit for the vear then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with imternational accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements ot the Companics Act 2006:

s the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting
standards. including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs {UK)™) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have tulfilled our ethical responsibilitics under.
and are mdependent of the Group in accordance with. UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard as applied 1o listed entities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sutficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Kev audit matters are those matters that. in our prolessional judgment, were of most sigmificance in the audit of
the financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not
duc to fraud) identified by us. including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy: the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement tcam.  These matters were
addresscd in the context of our audit ot the financial statements as a whole. and in forming cur opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a scparate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our audit opinion above, the key audit
matters, in decreasing order of audit significance. were as follows:

Group: Capitalization of costs associated with construction and installation activities

The risk — Oversiatement of profiis:

Certain internal and extemal labour and overhead costs incurred are capitalized as part of Property and
equipment (part of which is included within its the net book value of £5.647m (2019: £6.098m)). These
capitalized costs are associated with the capital projects undertaken by the group and invelve estimation of the
amount of time and costs that should be capitalised. The most significant risk is that the group may
inappropriately capitalize construction and mstallabion costs. The key risks 10 determining if construction and
installation costs qualify for recogmition as an assct. include whether the costs are directly attributable to
bringing the asset w the locanor and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by the group: 1t is probable that future economic benetits associated with the item will flow to the group. and if
the cost can be measured rehiably.
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Group: Capitalization of costs associated with construction and installation activities (continued)

Cr response
Our procedures included:

Control operations - We evaluated the design and implementation of key internal conmols in place to idennty
which construction and installation costs should be capitalized. and tested their operating eftectivencss.

Pevsonnel interviews - We challenged the amount of internal costs capitalized during the vear by comparing to
budgets, inter lewing department heads to determine the level ot time individuals have spent on capital iterns.
and analysed the changes to significant estimates utilized by the group to determine the amount of internal costs
to be capitalized (it any 1. and other changes in the business with a potential impact on cost capitalization during
the year.

Tests of detards - For both internal and external costs capitalised we selected a sample ol property and equipment

additions on costs capitalived and assessed the nature of the costs based on underlying internal and third party
documentation thereby assessing the appropriateness of the group’s cost capitalization conclusions.

Parent Companv: Recoverability of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries

The risk - low risk high value:

The carrying amount of the Company’s investments i subsidiaries of £4.699.4m {2019: £4.699 4m) represents
70.4%, of the company’s total assets. Their recoverability 15 not at a high risk of significant misstaterment or
subject to signiticant judgment. However. due to their materiality m the context of the financial statements. this
is considered to be the area that had the greatest effect on our overall audit of the parent company.

Qur response
Our procedures meluded:

Tests of detail: We compared the carying amount of material investments with the relevant subsidiaries” balance
sheet to identify whether their net assets. being an approximation of their minimum recoverable amount. were in
excess of thewr carrying amount and assessing whether those subsidiaries have historically been profit-making.

Assessing subsidion audits: We assessed the work performed by the subsidiary audit teams of those subsidiaries
where audits are performed and considered the results of that work on those subsidiaries’ profits and net assets.

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the group tinancial statements as a whole was set at £47.9m (2019: £51.6m). determined with
reference to a benchmark ot revenue adjusted for discontinued operations of £4.790.3m (2019 £3.168m) of
which 1t represents 1.0%o (207197 10705, We consider revenue to be the most appropriate benchmark as it provides
4 more stable measure year on vear than group profit betore tax.

Materiality for the parent company financial statements as a whole was sct at £33.4m (2019 £3]1.0m).
determined with reference to a benchmark of Company total assets. of which it represents 0.5% (2019: (1.8%0).

In line with our audit methodology. our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were
petformed to a lower threshold. pertormance materialitv. so as w reduce to an acceptable level the risk that
individually immaterial misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the
tinancial statemnents as a whole.

Performance materiality was set at 73 (2019 73%,) of materiality for the financial statements as a whole,
which cquates 10 £33.9m (2019: £38.8m) tor the group and £23.1m (2019: £38 3my fur the parent company. We
applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiality because we did not idenufy any factors
indicating an clevated les el of risk.
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3 Our applicatiun of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit {continued)

We agreed to report 10 the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding
£2.4m in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

The Group team performed the audit of the Group as if it was a single aggregated set ot financial information.
The audit was performed using the materiality and pertormance materiality level set out above.

4 Going Concern

The Directors have prepared the finuncial statements on the going concern basis as thev do not intend to
liquidate the Company or the Group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s
and the CGroup’s financial position means that this 1s realistic. They have also concluded that thete are no
material uncertaintics that could have cast signiticant doubt over their ability to continue as a gomg concemn for
at least a vear from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern penod™).

We used our knowledge of the Group and Company. its industry, and the general economic environment to
identily the inherent risks to its business model and analvsed how those risks might affect the Group's and
Company’s tinancial resources or ability o continue operations over the going concern period. The risks that we
considercd most likely to adversely affect the Group and Company’s available financial resources and/or metrics
relevant to debt covenants over this period were:

- Ability w continuc to perform and provide services under the lockdowns in the UK and Ircland. as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic
- Current levels of debt driven by Vendor Financing arrangements

We considered whether these risks could plausibly atfect the liquidity or covenant compliance 1n the going
concern period by assessing the Directors” sensitivitics over the level of available financal resources and
covenant thresholds indicated by the Group and Company 's tinancial forecasts taking account of severe, but
plausible adverse effects that could arise from these nisks individually and collectively.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 2 to the linancial statements gives a full and
accurate description of the Directors” assessment of going concern. including the wdentified risks and related
sensitivities.

Our conclusions based on this work:

. we consider that the Directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statermnents 1s appropriate:

. we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there s not. a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that. individually or collectively. may cast significant doubt
on the Group or Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concem period:

. we have nothing material w add or draw attention to in relation to the Directors” statement in note 2
the financial statements on the use ot the going concern basis of accounting with no matenal
uncertaintics that may cast signiticant doubt over the Group and Company’'s use of that basis for the
going concern period. and we found the going concem disclosure in note 2 w be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all tuture events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time thev were made. the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Group and Company will continue in operation.

5 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Idenrtifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks™) we assessed events or conditions that

could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity o commit fraud. Our risk
asscssment procedures included:
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& Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability te detect {continued)
. Enquiring of dircetors and management as o the Group high-level policies and procedures 1o prevent

and detect fraud, including the internal audit function. and the Group channel for “whistleblowing™. as
well ax whether they have knowledge ot any actual, suspected or alleged fraud:

. Reading Board minutes:

g Considerifg remuncration tneentin ¢ schemes and performance targets for management dircetors:

. Using analvtical procedures tw identity any unusual or unexpected relatienships:

. Using our own forensic specialists to assist us in wdentifying fraud risks based on discussions of the

circumstances of the Group

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit. This included communication trom the group to component audit teams of relevant fraud
risks tdentified at the Group level and request to component audit teams to report to the Group audit team any
instances of traud that could give rise to a material misstatement at group.

As required by auditing standards. and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets. we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override ol controls, in particular the risk that Group and
component management may be i a position to make inappropriate accounting entrics and the risk of bias in
accounting estimates and judgements such as mmpairment. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk
related to revenue recognition because of the straight-forward recognition ot cable revenuc over time. and the
low value naturc of the individual revenue transactions.

We also identified a traud risk related o inappropriate capitalisation of external and internal costs in response to
pussible pressures to meet profit targes. Further detail in respect ot the inapprepriate capitalization of external
and internal costs s set out in the key audit matter disclosures m section 2 of this report.

In determining the audit procedures. we took fnto account the results of our cvaluation and testing of the
operating ctlecuveness of the Group-wide traud risk management controls.

We also performed procedures including:
. Identitying journal entries to test for all full scope compuonents based on risk eniteria and comparing the

wdentified entries to supporting documentation. These included those posted by sentor finance
management. those posted and approsed by the same user and those posted to unusual accourits

. Ex aluated the business purpose of significant unusual transactions
. Assessing significant accounting esumates tor bias

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with lows and
regulations

We identified arcas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material ctfect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience. and through discussion with the
directors and other management (as required by auditing standards). and from inspection of the Group's
regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulativns.

As the Group {5 regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the contrel envirenment
including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements,

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughourt our team and remained ualert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit. This included communication from the group to component audit teams of
relevant laws and regulattons dentified at the Group level and a request for component auditors to report to the
group team any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that could give rise to a matenal
misstatement at group.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the nangial statements varies considerably.
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5 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect {continued)

Firstly. the Group s subject 10 laws and regulations that directly aflect the financial statements including
nancial reporting legislation Gimcluding related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, taxation
legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on
the related tinancial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material etfect on amounts or disclosures in the tinancial statements, tor mstance through the
imposition of tines or lingatnon or the loss of the Group's license to operate. We identified the tollowing areas
as those most likely to have such an effect: data and privacy law reflecting the growing amount of personal data
held and competition and markets regulation. recognismy the nature of the Group s activities. Auditing stundards
limut the required audit procedures to wentity non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enguiry of the
directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence. tf any. Theretore, if a
breach of operational regulations 1s not disclosed to us or evident trom relevant correspondence, an audit will not
detect that breach.

We discussed with the audit committee matters related o actual or suspected breaches of laws or regulations. tor
which disciosure s not necessary, and considered any implications for our audit.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there 1s an unavoeidable nsk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements 1 the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and pertormed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the turther removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions retlected in the financial statements. the fess likely the inherently
{limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition. as with any audit. there remained a higher risk of non-detection el fraud. as these may involve
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the overnde of nternal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to deteet material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
ot fraud and cannot be expected to deteet non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

6 We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and. accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion or. except as explicitly stated below. any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether, based on our tinancial
statements audit work, the information therein ts materially musstated or incensistent with the tinancial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solelv on that work we have not identified material misstatements in
the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

Based selely on our work on the other information:

e w¢ have not identitied material misstatements in the Strategic report and the Directors” report:

e in our epmion the information given in those reports for the financial year s consistent with the financial
statements: and

e inour opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companics Act 2006,
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7 We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companics Act 2006, we are required o report to o it i our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us: or

e the parent Company financial statements are not m agreement with the accounting records and returns: or

o certan disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made: or

¢ we have notreceived all the informartion and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
8 Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement sct out on page 16. the directors are responsible tor: the preparation of
the financial statements including being satisticd that they give a true and fair view: such internal control as they
determine s necessary to enable the preparation of financtal stalements that are Iree [rom material misstatement,
whether due to traud or error: assessing the Group and parent Company s ability 1o continue as a going conesrn,
disciosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern: and using the going coneern basis of accounting
unless they cither intend to Irquidate the Group or the parent Companty or (¢ cedse operations. or hasve oo realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibifities

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are tree
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue our opmion in an auditoer’s report.
Recasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted n accordance
with [SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exasts. Misstatements can arise from traud or
crror and arce considered material it. individually or in aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence
the cconomic decisions ol users taken on the basis ol the financial statements.

A fuller deseription of our responsibilities s provided on the FRC's  websie  at
www Irc.org.uk auditorsresponsibilities.

9 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members. as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
thuse matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s repert and tor ne other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume responsibility to anvone other than the Company and the
Company 's members. as a body. tor our audit work. tor this report. or tor the opinions we have formed.

Antony Whittle (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LL.P, Statutory Auditer
Churtered Accountants

1 St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3AFER

29 June 2021



Virgin Media Finance PLC

Group Income Statement and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the vear ended 31 December 2020

Notes
Revenue 3
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Group operating profit +4
Finance v 7
Finance costs 8
Net finance costs
{Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax benefitiexpense) 9
{Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations
Profit from discontinued operation (attributable to equity holders of
the company) 22
Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit ov loss
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit pension plans 2y
Tax (expensel’benefit on defined benefit pension plans 9
Items that will or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Impact of moyvements in cash flow hedges 21

Exchuange differences on the retranslation of toreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity
holders

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 27 1o 77 form part of the financial statements.

Restated™

2620 2019

£ million £ million
4.790.3 4.835.7
(1.630.6) (1.638.5}
3.139.7 31972

I A (2.139.7)
321.3 1.037.5
15378 4872
(968.5) {]R1.2
(510.49) {397.4h
(189.4) 640.5
7T {103.0)
{157 5375

6769 396

661.2 577.1

5.6 (7.2)

o (0.9) 1.0
17 (6.2)

47 5.4

(11.9) (8.2

{7.2) 23.6

6587 3043

6459 3758

12.8 18.7

6587 394.5

*On 30 November 2020. the group sold its Irish subsidiary UPC Broadband Ireland Limited to another
subsidiary of Liberty Global that is outside of the Virgin Media Group. This has been reported as a discontinued
operation {see note 22) and the prior yvear comparatiy e information has been restated accordingly.



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Group Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2020

Non-current assets

[ntangible assets

Property. plant and equipment
Financial assets

Trade and other recevables
Deterred tax assets

Defined benetit pension plan asset

Current assets

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Inventorics

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and othcr pavables
Financial liabilities
Provisions

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilitics

Provistons

Defined benefit pension plan liability

Taotal liabilities
Net assets

Capital and reserves

Equity share capital

Share premium account

Other capital reserves

Unrealised gains and losses

Forcign curreney translation reserve
Retained carnings

Virgin Media Finance PL.C group shareholders' equity

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

The notes on paves 27 to 77 form part of the tinancial statements.
pag p

These financial statements were approved by the directors en 2%

L Milner:
Director

Company Registration Number: 93061787

Notes

12
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19
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%
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31 December

31 December

2020 2019
£ million £ million
22393 24443
5.647.0 6.09%.0
6.234.0 54229
71.8 163
1.71%.1 {5442
924 86.4
T lew2e 15,6321
7525 825
603 3 630.9
434 316
19.3 139
14185 R219
NEEEI 16.154.0
(1.689.6) (1.391.9)
(2.152.9) (2.031.3)
(27N _ (3.6)
O (3.8450) (3.6268)
L3 (26.8)
(10,673 5 (10.463.5)
(681 1124.9
: 3 (7.9)
(107131 (10.623.1)
35383 (14.249.9y
2862 % 2.204.1
0.1 0.1
6259 625.9
(2.093.6) (2.093.6)
154 10.7
174 293
42259 3.572.8
27911 21452
717 589
JR62E R

June 2021 and are signed on their behalf by:



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Graup Statement of Changes in Equity
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

Attribugable to owners of the parent

Equity share Share Uther capital U nrealised kForeign Retained Total equity Non- Lotal equity
capital premium reserves gains and currency earnings Controlling
accuunt lonses translation interest
reyerve
£ million £ million £ million £ millien £ millien £ million £ mullion £ millinn £ million

AT Tangars 2000 il nIR 12,099 1 i1 A It (BRI i IR T
Total vomprebensive eome - - w3 <4 182 e TAN =" S48
woounting chame . - - - - - UKL _m - [T
W3 December 20149 01 n25 12098 o - 293 Is72s 24452 Suct 2.2t 1
A1 Tanaary 2020 Ul KIS [ARIRRET 14~ 243 3TN 21452 SR 2o0d 1
ol comprehensn e imeunie - L - 47 el Yyt S| .-
At 31 Deeember 2020 i1 6l5Y [RILRIH 154 174 43259 2.0

['he notes vn pages 27 w0 77 torm part of the financial statements

See note 25 {or an explanation of cach reserve



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activitics
Profit for the year
Profit trom discentinued operations

(Loss)/profit before income tax including discontinued operations

Adpstments te veconcile prafit for the vear attrithutuble w equity holders of

the parent to net cash intlow from operating aofivities
Depreciation of property, plant und cquipment

Amortisation of ntangible asscts

[mpairment of network assets

Net finance costs

Share-based pavmenty

[ncome taxes

CGuans on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Guin on disposal of discontinued operations

Unrealised losses on derivative instruments

Nun-cash foreign exchange movements

Decrease n trade and gther recen ables

[ncrease m inventorics

{Increase) in prepayments and other assets

Increase {decrease) in trade and other pavables

Increase i aceruals. deferred income and other current liabilities
{Decrease) increase in delerred income and other long term habilities
{Decrease) in provisions

Net cash inflow provided by continuing operating activities
Net cash ntlow tfrom discontinued operaung activities

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase ot property. plant and equipment

Loans to parent and group undertakings

{Lussesk proceeds on sale of property. plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of discontinued operations

Change in restricted cash

Interest received

Net cash outflow from continuing investing activities
Net cash outtlow from discontinued mvesting activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Financing activities

[nterest paid

Settlement of ¢cross currency interest rate swaps

New borrowings. net ol financing fees

Repayment of borrowings

Capital lease payvments

Net cash outflow from centinuing financing activities
Net cash outilow from disconunued fnancing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Etfect ot exchange rates on cash and cash equnalents
et (decreasel/inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents au T Januars
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 27 to 77 Torm part ot the financiaf statements.

Restated

2020 2019

Naotes £ million £ million
061.2 577 1

20 (676 9) (39 6
RTERD) 5373

1l gy 1 9834
10 1745 1931
- (364.6)

n72 548.2

474 120

(87.3) 122.7

(1.2) (3.3)

{HK. ) -

272 1509

(142.2) (140 9)

17.2 165.9

5.0 6.6

43 Ty (19 3)

IR (13 9)

146.3 2315

15.0) 161

(39.5) et

1027 23865

7347 7%

17574 24646

(301.8) (HI0.9)

(896 5) (442.9)

(0.3) 22

R A7 -
(17.7) (165

2771 2842
5604 (575 9)
(24.1) (272

(3854.3) (603 1)

(5549 (619.7)

130.2 874

58510 3.975.7

(6,374 (2238 1)
(42 5) (4561

(1186 1) (1.840.3)

155 (2.0

(1191 6) (18424

1.1 1.4y

(13 6) 177

15 339 162
13 [y 3 339




Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

I

Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The conselidated financial statements of Virgin Media Finance PLC tor the vear ended 31 Decemnber 2020 were
authorised for issue by the board of directors on June 2021 and the Group Balance Sheet was signed on the
board’s behalf by L Milner. Virgin Media Finance PLC is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled
in the UK. The company™s shares are not publicly traded although the Senior Notes 1ssued by the company are
registered on The International Stock Exchange in Guernsey.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted by the group are set out below and have all been applied consistently
throughout the current year and the preceding vear except as discussed below,

Basis of preparation
These financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost basis
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards {“IFRS™}.

In accordance with IFRS 3 “non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”, the comparative profit
and loss account has been re-presented so that the disclosures in relation to discontinued operations relate to all
uperations that have been discontinued by the balance sheet date (see note 221

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the group that has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, 1s
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or arca of opcrations. or 1Is &
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the statement of protfit or loss

Gaoing concern

Norwithstanding net current liabilities of £2.426.7 million as at 31 December 2020 tor the group and a profit for
the group for the vear of £661.2 million. the financial statements have been approved on the assumption that the
group remains a going concern. The following paragraphs summarise the basis on which the directors have
reached their conclusion.

It is Virgin Media's practice for operational and financial management to be undertaken at a group level rather
than for individual entities that are wholly owned by the group. Treasury operations and cash management for
all of Liberty Global's wholly owned subsidiaries are managed on a Liberty Global group basis. As part of
normal business practice, regular cash tlow forecasts tor both short and long term commitments are undertaken
at group level.

As Virgm Media Finance PLC 1s either a direct or indirect parent of substantially all of the trading companies in
the Virgin Media group, these consolidated financial statements include substantially all of the trade and assets
of the overall Virgin Media group. Whilst forecasts and projections. which take account of reasonably possibie
changes in trading performance, have not been prepared at a Virgin Media Finance PLC group level. they have
been prepared for the Virgm Media group as a whole. These indicate that cash on hand. together with cash from
operalions, repayment ol amounts due to Virgin Media from the Liberty Global group and undrawn revolving
credit facilitics. are expected to be sufficient tor the Group’s cash requirements through o at least 12 months
trom the approval of these financial statements. In addition. Virgin Media Inc. has formally indicated its
intention to continue to support the company tinanciallv for at least this period.

Whilst the detailed cash tlow forecasts are prepared at the group level. the directors have also assessed the
position of the company. Notwithstanding net liabilities ot £3.131.1 million as at 31 December 2020, this
assessment indicates that. taking account of reasonably possible downsides. the company will have sufficient
resources. through funding from fellow subsidiary companies to meet its labilities as they tall due for that
period.

As with any company placing reliance on other group entities tor tinancial support. the directors acknowledge
that there can be no certainty that this support will continue although. at the date of approval ol these financial
statetnents, they have no reason to believe that 1t will not do so. Consequently. the directors are conlident that
the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they tall due tor at least 12 months
from the dare of approval of the financial statements and have prepared the financial statemients on a going
concern basis. Consideration of the ongoing impact of COVID-19 and the Contribution Agreement (referred to
in note 32) has not altered this conclusion.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

2

Accounting policies (continued)

Variable interest entities

On 30 November 2018, in connection with gertain Liberty Global group reorganisations. the group completed
the transter of Liberty Property Holdeo 1 Limited and Liberty Property Holdco II Limited from the group to
Liberty Property Holdeo 111 Limited, another subsidiary of Liberty Global group outside of Virgin Media group.
Liberty Property Huldeo I Limited. Liberty Property Holdco [I Limited and Liberty Property Holdeo 111 are
collectively referred to as “the Liberty Property Companies.” The assets held by the Liberty Property
Companies are used by the group creating a variable interest in the Liberty Property Companies for which the
group is the primary beneticiary and. accordingly. the group is required to consolidate the Liberty Property
Companies.

Following the completion of the joint venture with Echo Bideo SARL. the Liberty Property Companies will no
longer be consolidated in the group financial statements of Virgin Media Finance PLC (see note 32).

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that atfect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported tor revenues
and expenses during the vear. The nature of estimation means that actual cutcomes could ditfer from those
estimates.

The most significant judgements and estimations used by management in the process of applymng the group’s
accounting policies are discussed below:

Impuirment of intangible assels
Goodwill and intangible asscts with indefimte lives are assessed for impairment annually and when such
indicators cxist.

When value in use calculations are undertaken. management must estimate the expected future cash (Tows rom
the asset or cash-gencrating unit and chouse a suitable discount rate tn order to calculate the present value of
these cash flows. Where fair value less cost 1o sell is used. the valuation must represent the fair value of the
cash-generating unit in an orderly transaction between market participants under current market conditions, less
costs to sell.

Deferred tux assets

Deterred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and allowances to the extent that it 15 probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant judgement 15 required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likelv iming and the level of
furure taxable profits together with tuture tax planning strategics.

Details of the measurement of the group’s deferred tax assel recognition and measurement are provided in note
9.

Property, plunt und equipment

Depreciation 15 provided on all property. plant and cquipment. other than freehold land. on a straight-line basis
at rates caleulated 1o write off the cost ol cach asset over the shorter of 13 leasing period or estimated useful
life. The estimation of an assets useful economic life has a significant etfect on the annual depreciation charge.
The uscful life and carrying values are reviewed annually for impairment and where adjustments are required,
these are made prospectively,

The nature and amount of labour and other costs to be capitalised with respect to construction and instaliation
acnivities involves significant judgement. [n addition to direct external and internal labour and materials, the
group also capitalises other costs direetly attributable to the group’s construction and installation activities.
including dispatch costs. quality-control costs. vehicle-related costs and certain warehouse-reluted costs. The
capitalisation of these costs 15 based on nme sheets, ime studies. standard costs. call tracking systems and other
vertfiable means that directly link the costs incurred with the applicable capitalisable activitv. The group
continuously monitors the appropriateness of its capitalisation pelicics and update the policies when necessary
to respond 1o changes in facts and cireumnstances, such as the development of new products and services. and
changes i the manner that installations or construction activities are performed.
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Virgin Mecdia Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measuroment of financial instrumenty

Management uses valuation techniques o determine the tair value of finanaial instruments (where active market
quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This imvolves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Management bases its assumptions on obsery able data as tar as possible but this s not always available. In that
case managemeant uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that
would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date {see note 21).

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiarics are entities contralled by the group. The group controls an entity when it {5 cxposed to. or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through
its power over the entity. In assessing conwol. the group takes into consideration potential voling rights. The
acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included i the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the
non-controlling interests cven if doing so vauses the non-centrolling interests to have a deficit balance.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations between entities that are under common control are uccounted for at book value. The
assers and liabilities acquired or transterred are recognised or derecognised at the carrying amounts previously
recoynised in the group controlling sharcholder's conselidated financial statements. The components of equity
of the acquired entities are added to the same compenents within the group cquity and any gain loss arising is
recognised directly in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions. and any unrealised income and cxpenses arising (rom inlra-group
transactions. are climinated. Unrcalised gains arising from transactions with cyguity-accounted investees arc
climinated against the investment to the extent of the group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
climinated in the same way as unrealised gains. but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency translation

The group’s consolidated financial statemnents are presented tn pound sterling. which is also the parent
company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the local entity’s
funcuienal currency by applving the exchange rate ruling at the date of the ransaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All cxchange differences are included in the Group Income Statement, except where
hedge-accounting is applied and tor differences on monctary assets and liabilities that form part of the group’s
net investment in a foreign operation. These are recorded directly in equity until the disposal of the net
investment. at which time thev are reclassitied from equity to profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measurcd in terms of historieal cost in a forcign curreney are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial ransactions. Non-monetary items measured at [air value in a torcign
currency are translated using the exchange raies at the date when the fair value was determined.

Goodwill

Business combinations. other than common control business combinations, are accounted for using the
acquisition method ax at the acquisition date. which is the date on which control is transferred to the group. The
group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

e the fair value of the consideration ansterred; plus

e the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree: plus

e the fair value of the existing equily interest in the acquiree: less

e the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and Labilitics
assumed.

Costs related w acquisitions, other than those associated with the issue of debt or cquity seeuritics. are expensed
as incurred.

29



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

2

Accounting policies (continned)

Goodwill (continued)
When the exeess Is negative any gain on bargain purchase is recognised 1n profit or loss immediately.

Any contingent consideration pavable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classificd as cquity. it 15 not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within cquity.
Otherwise. subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

Om a transaction-by-transaction basis, the group elects to measure non-controlling terests. which have both
present ownership interests and are entitled to 4 proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree n the event of
liquidation. either at its fair value or at its proportionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net
asscts of the acquiree at the acquisition date. All other non-contredling interests are measured at their fair value
at the acquisition date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost ncludes costs dircetly atributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.
Property. plant and equipment acquired through business combinations s initially recerded at tair valuc on
acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on all property. plant and ¢quipment, other than {rechold land. on a straight-Tine basis
at rates caleulated to write off the cost of each asset over the shorter of its leasing period or estimated useful life
as follows:

Network assets, cable plant and equipment

Network assets - 3-30vears

Network asscts includes comstruction in progress which 1s not depreciated and comprises of materials,
consumables and direct labour relating to network construction and is stated at the cost incurred in bringing
cach product to its present location and condition. as follows:

Raw materials and consumables - Purchase cost
Work in progress - Cost of direct materials and {abour

Other fixed ussets:

Right-of-use property - Pertod ot lease

Frechold property . other than land - 3 vears

Leaschold improvements - 20 yuears or, if less, the term of the lease
Fumniture and fixtures - 5-12ycars

Computer equipment - 3-35years

N

Motor vehicles - yeirs
Labour costs relating to the design. construction and development of the network. capital projects. and related
services are capitalised and depreciated on a ~straight-line basis over the life of the relevant assets.

The carrying values of property. plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when cvents or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrving values may not be recoverable. The usctul hives and residual values are
reviewed annually and where adjustments are required. these are made prospectively.

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

In accordance with TAS 36 Impament of dssers”. intangible assels with finite lives are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their respective estimated usetul lives. and reviewed for indications of impairment at cach
reporting date.  If any such indication exists. or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. the
group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount 1s the higher of 1ts
tair value less costs to sell and its value in use and 15 determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceads its recoverable amount. the asset 15 considered impaired and s written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessmg value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects current market assessments ot the ime value of
money and the risks specific o the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the
Group Income Statement in those expense calegories consisient with the tunction of the impaired asset.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued}

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (continued)

An assessment s made at each reporting date as o whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or mayv have decreased. 1t such indication exists. the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. other than on goodwill. only it there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognmsed.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

A provision is recognised when the group has a present. legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
cvent tor which 1t 1s probable that the group will be required to settle by an outtlow of resources and for which a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at cach balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

When the etfect of the time value of money 1s material provisions are discounted using a rate that retlects the
risks specitic 1o the liability. Where discounting 1s used. the unwinding of the discount iy expensed as incurred
and recognised in profit and loss as an interest expense.

Leases

On the lease commencement date, (1) a ROU asset 13 recognised representing the right to use an underlying
asset and (i) lease habilities representing the group’s obligation to make lease pavments over the lease term.
Lease and non-lease components in a contract are generally accounted for separately.

The group initially measures lease liabilities at the present value of the remaining lease payvments ever the lease
term. Options to extend or terminate the lease are included only when it is reasonably certain that the option
will be exercised. As most of the group’s leases do not provide cnough miformation to determmine an implicit
interest rate, a portfolio level incremental borrowing rate i1s used in the present value calculation, ROU assets
are inttially measured at the value of the lease liability, plus any initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments.
less anv lease incentives received.

ROU assets are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter ot the lease term or the usctul life
of the assel. Interest expense on the lease liability is recorded using the cffective interest method.

Lessor
When the group acts as a lessor. it determines at lease inception whether cach lease is a tinance lease or an
operating leasc.

Te classify each lease, the group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially ail of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease 15 a
tinance lease: 1f not, then 1t i an operating lease. As part of this assessment. the group considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic lite of the asset.

The group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
All leans and borrowings are initally recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs.

Atfter initial recognition. interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the ctfective interest method.

Gains and losses arising on the repurchase. settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilitics are recognised
respectively 1n finance income and finance costs.

Finance costs which are incurred in connection with the issuance of debt are deferred and set off agamst the

borrowings to which they relate. Deferred finance costs are amortised over the term of the related debt using the
ctfective interest method.
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Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Rotrowings are classitiod as creditors: amounts falling due within one year unless the company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the lizbility for at least 12 months atter the reporting period in which
vase they are classified as creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The group has established policies and procedures to govern the management of 1ts exposure to interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rate risks through the use of derivatin e financial instruments, mcluding interest rate
SWaps. Cross currency interest rate swaps and loreign cuniency forward rate contracts.

Derivative financial instruments arc imitiakly recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Derivatives are recognised as tinancial assets when the tair value s positive and as liabilities when the lair
value 1s negative.

The foreign currency forward rate contracts, interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are
valued using internal models based on observable inputs. counterparty valuations or market transactions in
either the listed or over-the counter markets. adjusted for non-performance risk. Non-performance risk is based
upan quoted credit detault spreads for counterparties to the contracts and swaps. Derivative contracts which are
subject to master netting arrangements are not offset and have not provided. nor require. cash collateral with
any counterparty.

While these instruments are subject to the risk of loss from changes in exchange rates and interest rates. these
fosses would generally be otfset by gains in the related exposures. Financial instruments are only used to hedge
underlying commercial ¢xposures. The group does not enter inte derivative financial mstruments for speculative
trading purposes. nor docs it enter into deriyative financial instruments with a level of complexity or with a risk
that s greater than the exposure to be managed.

For derivatives which are designated as hedges the hedging relationship is documenrted at its inception. This
documentation 1dentifies the hedging instrument. the hedged 1tem or transaction. the nature of the risk being
hedged and how etfectiveness will be measured throughout its duration. Such hedges are expected at inception
to be highly effective.

The group designates certain derivatives as either fair value hedges. when hedging exposure to variability in the
tair value of recogmsed assets or liabilities or firm commitments. or as cashflow hedges. when hedging
expuosure to vanability in cash flows that arc cither attributable to a particular risk associated with 4 recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

Derivatives that are not part of an elfective hedging relationship. as set out in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
([FRS 9}. must be classified as held tor trading and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The treatment ot gains and losses ansing from revaluing derivarives destgnated as hedging instruments depends
upon the natre of the hedging relationship and are treated as follows:

Cush flow hedges

For cash flow hedges. the effectine portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument is recognised directly
in Other Comprehensive [ncome. while the inetfective portion is recognised in the Group Income Statement.
Amounts taken to Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to the Group Income Statement when the
hedged transaction is recognised in the Group Income Statement. such as when a forecast sale or purchase
veeurs. in the same line ot the Group Income Statement as the recognised hedged item. Where the hedged item
is the cost of a non-financial asset or liabilitv. the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are
transterred to the mmitial measurement of the cost ot the non-financial asset or liability, [T a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to oceur. the gain or loss accumnulated in equity 1> recognised immediately in the Group
Income Statement. I the hedging instrument expires or s sold. terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover. or if its designation as a hedge is revoked. ameunts previously recoygnised in Other Comprehensive
Income remain o equity until the forecast transaction oceurs and are reclassified w0 the Group Incomce
Statement.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Fair value hedges

For tair value hedges, the changes in the fair value of the hedging mstrument are recognised in the Group
Income Staternent immediately. together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging imstrument and the change in the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the Group Income Statement relating to
the hedged item.

It the hedging instrument expires or is yold. terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover. or it its
designation as a hedge is revoked. then the tair value adjustment to the carrving amount of the hedged item
arising [tom the hedged risk is amorused to profit or loss from that date.

Inventories

Inventory consists of goods for resale and programing inventories which are valued at the lower of cost or net
reahisable value using the first-in. first-out (FTF() method. Cost represents the invoiced purchase cost of
imventory. INet realisable value 1s hased on judgements, using currently avatlable information about chsolete,
slow moving or defective inventory. Based upon these judgements and estimates, which are applied consistently
trom period to pertod. an adjustment is made to state the carrying amount of inventory held for resale at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Trade und other receivables

Trade receivables are mntially measured at fair value and subsequently reported at amortised cost. net of an
allowance for impairment of wade receivables. The allewance tor impairment of trade receivables s estimated
based upon our assessment of anticipated loss related to uncollectible accounts receivable. We use a number of
factors mn determining the allowance, including. among other things, collection trends. prevailing and
anticipated economic cenditions, and specitic customer credit risk. The allowance is maintained until cither
pavment is received or the likelihood ol collection is considered te be remote. For additional information
regarding our trade receivable and allowance tor impairment of trade receivables, see note (3.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade recetvables is limited duc to the large number of residential
business customers. We also manage this risk by disconnecting services to customers whose accounts are
delinquent.

Cash and short term deposits

Cush and short-term deposits in the Group Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity ot three months or less. For the purpose ot the Group Cash Flow Statement.
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits as defined above. net ot outstanding bank
overdrafts.

Tax

Current income ldx

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered [tom or paid to the
taxation authorities. based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the halance shecet
date.

Current income tax relating to iems recognised directly in equity ts recognised in equity and not in the income
statement. The directors periodically cvaluate positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establish provisions where appropriate.
Income tax is charged or credited o Other Comprehensive Income if it relates to 1tems that are charged or
credited to Other Comprehensive [necome.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary dilTerences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilitics and their carrying amounts lor financial reporting purpeses at the reparting date.

Deferred tax Hahilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. exeept:
«  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of geodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of the ransaction. affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable protit or loss.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Tax {continued)

e In respect of axable temperary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. associates and
interests in joint ventures. when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and il is probabie that the temporary ditterences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure.

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed for all deductible temporary ditterences. the carry torward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable thai taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry torward of unused tax
credits and unused tax fosses can be utithsed. except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relaung to the deducuble temporary difference arises from the mnal
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profitor loss.

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries. associates and
interesis 1N joint ventures. deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it s probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the toresecable future and raxable protit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred 1ax asscts 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
ne longer probable that sutficient taxable protit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that 1t has become probabie that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the year when the
asset 18 rcalised or the liabilitv is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside protit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
itemns are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction ¢ither in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally entorceable right exasts 1o set off current tax
assets against current income tax labilities and the deterred taxes relate to the same taxable entitv and the same
tax authority.

Pensions

The group contributes 1o the Virgin Media sponsored group persenal pension plans for cligible employees.
Contributions to these schemes are recognised in the Group Income Statement in the period in which they
become pavable. in accordance with the rules for cach of the plans.

The group operates two (2019: three) detined benetit pension plans, which require contributions to be made to
separately administered tunds. The plans are closed to new entrants.

The regular cost of providing benetits under the defined benefit plans is attributed to individual v ears using the
projected unit credit method, Variations i pension cost. which are dentified as a result of actuarial valuations.
are amortised over the average expected remaining working lives of emplovees in proportion to their expected
payroll costs. Past service costs are recognised in the mcome statement on a stratght-line basis over the vesung
period or immediately if the benefits have vested.

When a settlement (elimmarting all obligations for benetits already accrued) or a curtailment {reducing turure
obligations as a resuit of a material reduction in the scheme membership or a reduction in future entitlement)
oceurs. the obligation and related scheme assets are re-measured using the current actuarial assumptions and the
resuitant gain or loss recognised in the Group Income Statement during the perad i which the settlement or
curtailment oceurs.
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Pensions (continued)

The interest ¢lement of the defined benetit pension cost represents the change tn present value of scheme
ohligations resulting from the passage of time and is determined by applying the discount rate to the opening
present value of the benetit obligation. taking into account material changes in the oblhigation during the year.
The expected return on scheme assets is based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long term
market returns on scheme asscts, adjusted for the effect of fair value of the scheme assets of contributions
received and benefits paid during the year. The ditference between the expected return on scheme assets and
the interest cost is recognised in the Group Income Statement,

Actuarial gaing and lusses are recognised in tull in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period
in which thev oceur.

The defined benetit pension asset or Lability in the Group Balance Sheet comprises the total for each scheme of
the present value of the defined benefit oblizgation (using a discount rate based on high gquality corporate bonds),
less any past service cost not yet recognised and less the fair value ot scheme assets out of which the obligations
arc 1o be sctiled directlv. Fair value is based on market price mformation and. in the case of quoted securities,
is the published bid price.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is realised or realisable and earned. Revenue 1s measured at the fair
value of the consideration received. excluding discounts. rebates and VAT, The following criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised:

s persuasive evidence of an arrangement ¢xists between the company and the company's customer;

delivery has occurred or the serviee has been rendered:
e the price for the service is fixed or determinable: and

+ recoverability 1s reasonably assured

Revenue eamed from contracts to be recogntsed in line with perfoermance obligations based on a five-step
model.

On inception ot the contract we ientify a “performance obligation™ for each of the distinct goeds or services
we have promised 1 provide to the customer. The consideration specified in the contract is allocated to cach
performance obligation identitied based on thew relative standalone selling prices. and is recognised in revenue
as they are satisfied. The following table summanses the pertormance obligations we have identified for our
major revenue lines and provides information on the time of when they are satisties and the related revenue
recognition policy.

Revenue line Performance obligation I Revenue recognition policy

Service resenue — Cable | Provision of broadband internet. video. and fixed- | Revenue for these tvpes of services 15

Newworks line telephuny services over our cable network o | recognised evenly over the perod of the
CUSLOIMCTs, agreement as the senvees are provided

Pertormance obligations are identitied for cach
distinct senviee for which the customer has
contracted and are considered to be satistied over
the time period that these services are delivered.

[nstaliation and other When the group enters into contracts to provide These tees are gencrally deterred and
i uptront fees services to customers. the group often charges recognised as resenue over the
; installation or ather uptront fees. contractual pertod, or longer if the
uplront tee results in a material renewal

The greup s obliged to ensure it can supply
services to the customer premise as per the
customer contract. This imeludes cable plant and
equipment installation af the customers premisc.

right.

[nstallation is not considered as a separate
performance vbligation,

tad
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Revenue recognition {continued)

[ B2B revenue Provision of duta. voice and network solunon
services, meluding the sale and mamtenance off

! cquipment to business customers. Installution charges
arc charged 1 refation to the provision of services.

The group is obliged 1o provide the customer with the
connectivity sen iees and or equipment stipulated the
customer contract.

[nstallation is not considered as a separate
pertormance obligation.

Provistion of minutes. texts and data over our mobile
network

Muobile revenue
Arrtime services

The group is obliged W provide the customer with a
SIM which 15 provisioned with contracted allowances
cach month.

The group deter uptront instaltation
and certain nenrecurring fecs
recenved on business-to-business
coniracts where we maintain
ownership of the installed
equipment. The deterred fees are
amortised into revenuc on a
straight-line basis. geacrally over
the longer of the term of the
arTangement or the expected period
of pertormance.

From time to time. we also enter
into agreements with certain B2B
Customers pursuant to which they
are provided the right to use certain
clements of our network.

[t these agreermnents are determined
to contain a lease that meets the
critena to be considered a sales-

| tvpe lease. we recogmze revenue

from the lzase component when
control of the network element s
ransterred to the custoner.

The group recognise revenue from
mabile services in the peried i
which the related services are
provided. Revenue from pre-pay
customers 15 deterred prior to the
commencement of services and
recoghised as the services are
rendered or usage rights expire.

Mobile revenue -
Handsuts

Provision of mobile handset delivery te the customer.

The group 1s obhiged 1o provide delivery of mobile
handsets as requested by the customer.

Arrangement consideration
allocated (o handsets s recognised
as revenue when the goods have
been delivered and title has passed.
For customers under a mobile
handsct instalment contract that s
mdependent of 4 mobile artime
SEIVICCs CORITACT, revenue 1%

| recognised upon delivery

There are no material obligations in respect of returns. retunds or warranties.

Consideration {rom mobile contracts is allocated to the airtime service compenent and the handsct componen
based on the relative standalone selling prices of cach component. When the group offer handsets and airime
services in separate contracts entered into at the same time. the group account for these contracts as a single

contract.

Incremental revenues are generated based on usage for calls and video on demand. The entity has a right to
consideration from the customer at an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
entity’s performance completed to date. therefore the entity recognises the revenue to the extent to which 1t has

a right to invoice.

For subscriber promotions. such as discounted or free services during an intreductory period. revenue is
recognised umiformly over the contractual period if the contract has substaniive wermination penalties. If a
centract does not have substantive termination penalties. revenue is recognized only to the extent of the

discounted monthly fees charged to the subscriber. if any.

Certain upfront custs assoctaled with contracts that have substantive termination penalties and a term of one
vedr or more are recognised as assets und amortised 1o operating costs and expenses over the applicable period

benetfited.
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Finance income
Finance mcome is recogmised as interest accrues uccording to the effective interest method which uses the rate
that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected lite of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount.

Share-hased payments

The company 1s an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary ot Virgin Media Inc. and Liberty Glebal ple. The
company has no sharc-based compensation plans. Emplovees of the group render services in exchange tor
shares or nights over shares {equity-settled transactions) of Liberty Global ple common stock.

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with emplovees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date
which they are granted. The fair value of options and share appreciation nghts are determined using the Black-
Scholes model. The fair value of restricted share units s determined using cither the share price at the grant darc
or the Monte Carle model. depending on the conditions attached to the restricted share units being granted.
These transaction costs are recognised. together with a corresponding increase in either equity or amounts owed
to parent undertakings, over the service period. or. it applicable, over the period in which any performance
conditions are fulfilled. which ends on the date on which the relevant emplovees become fully entitled to the
award {vesting date). The cumulatrve expense recognised for equity settled transacnons at each reporting date,
until the vesting date. retlects the extent to which the vesting pertod has ¢xpired and the number of awards that
are estimated to ultimately vest. in the opinton ol management at that date and based on the best available
mformation.

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultumately vest. except tor awards where vesting 1s condinonal
upon a market vesting condition, which are treated as wvesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisticd, provided that all other performance conditions arc satisfied.

Segment infermation

The principal activity of the group is to facilitate the group's financing structure by implementing the group's
caprial management policies, making and facilitating external borrowings and holding investments in subsidiary
companies. The company's investments include substantially all of the Virgin Media group’s trading operating
companies.

The Virgin Media group’s reporting segments are based on its method of internal reporting to the Liberty
Global group and the information used by its chiet exccutive ofticer. who is the chiet operating decision maker
("CODM™), to evaluate segment pertormance and make capital allocation decisions.

[t has been determined that the Virgin Media group comprises a single operating segment. This retlects how the
CODM reviews the results of the group’s business bused on revenue and profitability measures.

There is no material difference between the revenue presented to the CODM and the revenue of the Virgin
Media Finance PLC group. Revenue for the group was £4.790.3 million (2019 - £4.8357 millien} and was
entirely derived trom the sale of goods and services.

Geographic Locations
The group’s revenue by geographic location 1s set out below:

Restated

2020 2019

£ million £ million

UK 4.730.5 4.770.9
[reland 398 64.8
Total 4.790.3 1.835.7

Ireland represents revenue generated from the Inish television business.
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This 1s stated alter charging (crediting):

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (note 11)
Depreciation of right ot use assets (note 11)

Total depreciation

Amortisation of intangible asscts (note 1()

Rent of premises

Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment

Cost of mventories recognised within cost of sales

Gain on sale of discontinucd operations (note 22)

5 Auditor’s remuneration

Restated

2020 2019

£ million £ million
933.0 943 .4

351 400

9881 983 4
1743 193.1

T T2 298
T %))
1929 2080

T 1668.3) -

The group paid the following amounts to 1ts auditor in respect of the audit of the tinancial statements and for

other services provided to the group.

Fees paid to the auditor Tor audit and other senvices to the company are not disclosed in its individual accounts

as the group accounts are required to disclose such tees on a consolidated basis.

Fees pavable to the company’s auditor and their associates for other services represents tees payable for
services 1n relation to other statutory filings or engagements that are required to be carried out by the group's

auditor.

Audit services:
Statutory audit services - audit of the parent company and group
tinancial statements

Fees pavable to the company's auditor and their associates for other services:
Statutory audit sersices - statutery accounts of the company's subsidiaries

6  Staff costs and directors’ emoluments

(a) Staft costs

2020
£ million

.5

2019
£ million

Included in wages and salarics is a total cxpense for share-based pavments of £337 millien (2019 - £48.3
million). all of which anses trom transactions accounted for as equity -settled share-based payment transactions.

Further information on compensation of kev management personne! is disclosed in the related party

transactions {note 29).
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(h)

(c)

Staff costs and directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) Statt costs (continued)

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Pension costs - defined henefir scheme
Pension costs - defined contribution scheme
Total staff costs

Avcerage staff numbers

The average monthly number of employees during the year was:

Consumer

Suppert, Technology and Innovation
Business

Network Expansion

Mobile

Total average staff numbers

Directors’ emoluments

There were no other transactions with directors during the yvear,

Directors' remuneration
Amounts receivable under long term incentive plans
Total remuneration

Company contributions under defined contribution pension plans

Highest paid director:
Remuncration {including awurds receivable under long term incentive plans)
Company contributions under detfined contribution pension plans

Number of directors accruing benefits under detined contribution pension plans
Number ot directors who exercised share options under schemes

operated by ultimate parent company

Number of directors with shares received or reccivable under long

term incentive plans

39

Restated

2020 2019
£ million £ million
611.3 3642
fd. 3 528
1.7 l.6
293 26.1
706.8 6447
Restated

2020 2019
No. No.
6.494 5.856
3.031 3942
1.358 22101
1.221 887
63 52
12,169 12,948
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
1.5331 3.938
673 1310
2.204 5,448
Y 13
1.047 2148
0 0
1.056 2157
2020 2019
No. No.

1 3

4 3

4 3
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7 Finance income

Other finance income and interest on amounts due [rom group undertakings and related parties are recognised
using the effective interest rate method in accordance with IFRS 9 “financial instruments”,

Interest on amounts due trom related parties
Gain on foreign exchange

(rain on fair value of tinancial instruments
Other finance income

Interest on pension plans

Total finance income

8 Finance costs

Interest payable is recognised using the etfective mtersst rate method.

20240
£ million

276.9
p70.7
7.5
.2

23

457.6

Restated
2019
£ million

2838
2005

0.6
23

487.2

For the vear ended 31 December 2020, loss on extingmishment of debt was £138.2 million (2019 - £115.5
million) and related te the redemption premium paid and the write off ol deferred financing costs as a result of
the redemption of the senior notes. senior secured notes and senior credit facilities from refinancing activities

during the year (sec note 17}

[nterest payable on:
Senior credit facility and vendor financing
Senior notes

Less on derivative financial instruments

Loss on debr extinguishment

Loss on fair value of financial instruments

Interest payable on leases

Unwinding of discounts on provisions

Other interest and fecs

Total finance costs

40

2020
£ million

243,

2
2993

4.7
9683

Restated
2019
£ million
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9 Tax
fa) Tax expense on profit before tax
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Current tax:
UK taxes 1.0 0.9
1.0 049
Deterred tux.
Origination and reversal of temporary ditterences 72 9%+
Movement in deferred tax assels due to change in tax rate (1824 {3.9)
Prior year adjustment 0.5 7.6
(1747 1021
Total tax {henetitk-expense in Group [ncome Statement {(173.7 103.0
(b) Reconciliation of the total tax (benefit)/expense in the Group Income Statement
The Group Income tax assessed for the vear 1s lower than (2019 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19%% (2019 - 19%0). The ditterences arc explamed below:
Restated
2020 2019
£ million £ million
{Loss)kprofit betore income tax IR 6d05
{Loss)protit multiplied by the UK standard rate of corporation (36.0) 121.7
tax of 19%% (2019 - 19%%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes I.3 6.0
Group reliet surrendered. { claimed} without pavment 433 (38.2)
Other (0.4 92
Movement in deferred tax assets duc to change in tax rate (1R2.4) (3.9}
Adjustment relating to prior vears 0.5 82
Total tax {benefitiexpense recognised in the Group Income Statement (173.7) 103.0
{¢c) Reconciliation of the total tax expense
2026 2019
£ million £ million
Tax recognised in the Group [ncome Statement (173.7) 103.0
Tax recognised in equity 0.9 (1.0)
Total tax (bencfit). expense {172.8) 102.0
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9 Tax (continued}
(d) Recognised deferred tax

Recognised deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were as rollows:

2020 2019
£ million £ million
UK deferred tax asscts:

Depreciation and amortisation 1.501.6 1.370.1
Denvative instruments 376 itz
Net operating losses 1604 15374
Other _Iss 55

Total UK deterred tax assets LIS 1S4

The group has determined it probable that in future it will gencrate sutficient pre-tax profits 1w utilise
substantially all ol'its deferred Lax assets,

In the 11 March 2020 Budget it was announced that the UK tax rate will remain at 19% and not reduce to [7%
from 1 April 2020, The 19% rate was substanuvely enacted in the Finance Bill 2020 on 17 March 2020 In the 3
March 2021 Budget. it was announced that the UK tax rate would mncrcase o 23% from 1 April 2023,
substantively enacted on 22 May 2021 This will increase the group's future current tux charge accordingly and
increase the deferred tax asset by approximarely £525.0 million.

The deferred tax assets have been calculated using the enacted rate of 19% as at the current balance sheet date
{2019 — 17%).

(e} Unrecognised deferred tax

Deferred tax assets in respect of the following amoeunts have not been recognised as there is not currently

persuasive cvidence that there will be suitable taxable profits against which these tming ditferences will
res erse.

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Net operating losses 1923 479.0

Capital losses 12.104.7 12.104.6

Other timung difterences 177.5 3140
C 124745 128976
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9  Tax {(continued)

{f) Movement in deferred tax balances
Movements in deferred tax during the year:

1 January

Recognised in

2020 income

£ million £ million

Depreciation and amortisation 1.370.1 131.5
Dervative instruments 11.2 264
Net operating losses 1374 3.0
{Mher 3.6 138
1.5343 1747

Recognised in
equity
£ million

31 December
2020
£ million

- 1.501.6
- 36
. 160 4
(0.9} 18.5
(0.9} T1718.1

Movements m deferred tax during the prior vear:

1 January
2019
£ million

Depreciation and armortisation 1.499.9
Detivative instruments (6.7)
Net operating losses 139.0
Other 131
1.6433

Recognised in

Recognised in

31 December

income equity 2019
£ million £ million £ million
(129.8) - 1.370.1

17.9 : 1.2
1.4 - 1574
(%.5) 1.0 5.6
(102.0) 1.0 15443
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10 Intangible assets

(a} Summary of intangible assets

Goodwill IT Software Other Total

£ million £ million £ miflion £ million
Cost
At January 2019 23038 645 R 21.7 29713
Impairment - (0.4 - (0.4}
Additions - &9.2 - 892
Dispusals - (75.1) - (73.1)
Effect of movement in exchange rates _{12.6) - - 112.6)
At 31 December 2019 and | January 2020 22912 T 8595 217 29724
Additions - 124.5 - 1245
Disposals - (119.5) - (119.3)
On disposal of subsidiary 10 related party {163.6) - - (165.6)
Litect of movement in exchange raies 1.9 - 1.9
At 3] December 2020 T 21375 eeds 217 2307
Accumplated amortisation and impairment
At ] January 2019 138.0 2562 15.9 310.1
Amuortisation charge - i92.0 1.1 193.1
Disposals - (75.1) - {(75.1
At 31 December 2019 and | January 2020 T %0 3730 170 T
Amortisation charge - t73.7 1.8 1743
Disposals - (1182 - {118.23
AU31 December 2020 1380 4286 178 Sgdd
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 1.999.3 2339 39 22393
At 31 December 2019 24532 2864 +.7 24443
At | January 2019 216358 IRY.6 5.8 2.561.2

The amortisation charge has been recognised through administrative expenses in the Group Income Statement.
(b} Impairment of goodwill and intangible assers with indefinite lives

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not ameortised. but mstead are tested tor
impairment at least annually. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units. the assets of which are separately
operated and monitered.

The group evaluates the recoverable amount of the group’s reporting units. using a fair value less costs to sell
method. The group’s estimate of the recoverable amount is based primanly of obsenvable EBITDA muluples
for recent transactions and publicly--traded peer companies. which are Level 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.
The group’s 2020 goodwill impairment assessment determined that fair value exceeded the carrving value of
both of the group’s reperung units and as a result concluded that ne impairment to goodwill was required.
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Network
assets

£ million

Other
£ million

Total
£ million

At 1 January 20149 144317 1 4343 [3.871.2
Lease epening balance adjustment 10.5 136.6 1471
Additions 1.003.4 IX7.8 1.193.2
Ettect of movement in exchange rates (43.3} (5.6) (49.1)
Disposals (799.1, t43.5) {842.6)
At 3] December 2019 and 1 January 2020 S lde0s0 17138 T16.319.8
Opening balance adjustment 1Y {2.6) {0.7)
Additions 8706 141.3 1.011.9
Effect of movement in exchange rates 423 6.4 48.7
Disposals (603.9) (157.h {760.9)
On disposal of subsadiary to related party (821.%) (97.-h) {918.9)
At 31 December 2020 T 140944 1603 S 13.699.9
Depreciation
At 1 January 2019 94542 9939 144801
Provided during the year 39010 136.7 1.046.7
Impairment release (424.7) - (424.7)
Effect of moyvement in exchange rates (23.1) (2.7 (2581
Disposals (779.3) (43.2) (822.5)
At 31 December 2019 and | January 2020 91171 1104 7 102218
Provided during the vear 932.0 116.6 1.O48.6
Effect of movement in exchange rates 234 4.3 27.7
Disposals (399.8) 196.5) 1696.3)
On disposal of subsidiary to related party +32.h {96.8} (348.9)
At 3] December 2020 B 9.020.6 1.032.3 10,0529
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 3.073.8 5732 36470
At 31 December 2019 34879 610.1 6.098.0
At 1 January 2019 49775 H5.6 54231
The group did not capitalise any borrowings costs during the ycar.
Included in 'Other' are the tollowing net book values:
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Frechold land and butldings 33 344
Leaschold land and buildings 284 291
Leasehold improvements 495 39.6
111.3 1231

The remaining asscts included in “Other’ consist of turniture and fixtures. computer equipment and motor

v ehicles.

-
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i3

Financial assets

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Nof-current
Restricted cash 39.7 220
Deterred financing costs 144 16.2
Derivative instruments (sec¢ note 21) 2797 43G9
Amounts owed by related partics 5.900.2 48538
62340 54220
Current
Derivative instruments {see note 21) 66.6 824
Restricted cash 0.1 0.1
Amounts owed by related parties 683 8 -
T7525 825

Amounts owed by related partics are primanily in respect of loan notes receivable from Liberty Global Europe 2
Limited. and Newco Holdeo 3 Limited. both wholly owned subsidiaries of Liberty Global ple that sit outside of

the Virgin Media group.

1} Notes receivable from Liberty Global Europe 2 Limited. which have an agyregate principal balance of
£41.79%.7 million {2019: £4.926 4 million}. These comprise of principal amount outstanding of £685.8
million (2019: £nil) at a rate ot 2.5360%, repayable in December 2021 and £4.758.1 million (2019: £4.926.4
million) at a rate of 4.741% {subject to adjustment) repayable in July 2023, As at 31 December 2019
£1.501.3 million was outstanding which incurred interest at a rate of 8.5%0. This was repaid in May 2020.

11} Notes rceeivable from Newcee Holdeo 3 Limited, which have a pnincipal amount outstanding of £1.098.2

million {2019 £nily at a rate of 3.74%0 repayvable in May 2027,

Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Non-current
Prepayments and accrued income B 71.8 36.3
Current
Trade receivables 3809 $29.4
Armounts owed by parent and group undertakings 243 1.6
Amounts owed by related parties 1L 353
Prepayments and accrued income 1870 186
b033 6509

Prepavments and acerued income classificd as non-current include long term telecommunications contract

assets with terms 1 excess of one year.

Current amounts owed by both parent. group undertakings and related parties are unsecured and repavable on

demand.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. are generally on 30-90 dav terms and are stated net ot provisien tor
nen-recoverability. The group's rade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment
and 1t was concluded that a provision for nop-recoverability of £19.7 million (2019 - £19.5 million) was
required. The carrving value of rade receivables 15 considered to be a fair approximation of fair value.
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13 Trade and other receivables (continued)

14

The allowance for doubtlul accounts 15 based upon the group’s assessment ol probable loss related w0
uncellectible trade recenvables. The group uses a number ot factors in determiming the allowance, including.
among other thimgs, collection trends. prevailing and anticipated ceonomic conditions and specific customer
credit risk. The allowance s maintained unnil either receipt of pavment or the fikelihood ot collection 15
considered tw be remote.

Movements in the provision for impairment ot receiv ables were as tollows:

£ million
At | January 20149 19.6
Charge tor the vear 232
Utihised (23.3)
At 31 December 2019 and | January 2020 19.5
Charge tor the vear 220
Culised I
At 51 December 2020 19.7
The ageing analvsis of rade receivables is as follows:
Neither
past due ner Balances past due
Total impaired <30 days 30-60days 60- 9 days >90 days
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
31 December 2020 1809 366 194 134 10.8 20.7
31 December 2019 4294 3246 4.6 214 6.8 390
Inventories
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Goods for resale 235 0.8
Programming inyentory 19.9 237
Total Inventory 134 34 6

Inventories are stated after provisions for impairment of £4.8 million (2019 - £6.7 million)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cuash at bank eumns interest at tlouting rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made tor
varving periods of between one duy and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
group. and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates, The fair value of cash and cash equivalents
imcluding overdrawn cash book balances at 31 December 2020 was £19.3 million (2019 - £33.9 million).

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Cash at bank and in hand 9.2 339
Short-term deposits 0.1 -

19.3 33y
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16 Trade and other payables

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Non-current
Other leng term payables S 215 263
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Current
Trade pavables 3393 3543
VAT. payroll taxes and social security costs 1522 161.0
Interest pavable 138.8 1332
Amounts owed to parent and group undertakings 77.5 522
Amounts owed to related party 1729 489
Accruals and deferred income 889 8423
16896  1.591.9

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and generallv repayable on terms of up to 60 days. Trade payables,
interest pavablc and amounts owed to group undertakings are financial liabilities which are excluded from note
i7.

Amounts owed to group undertakings and to related parties are unseeured and repavable vn demand.

Other long term payables consist of property and restructuring costs provisions.

17 Financial liabilities

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Current
Lcase labilities {(see note 13) 31.9 335
Current instalments duc on other debt 6.6 101.3
Derivative instruments (see note 21} Jdx.2 133.6
Vendor financing 1.966.2 1.762.7
21529 20313
Non-current
Lease liabilitics (see note 18) 1722 188.0}
Non-current instalments due on senior credit facility 19676 30984
Senior notes 11195 1.187.3
Sentor secured notes 4.381.2 14719
Non-current instalments due on other debt 2863 42.7
PDerivative instruments (see note 21) 6077 128
Vendor financing 89.0 724
T 106235 104635
Total financiaf liabilities 127764 [2.494.8
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17 Financial liabilities (continued)

Borrowings at 31 December were repavable as tollows:

Amounts talling due:

Within one year

[11 more than one vear but not more than tive vears
[n more than five vears

Less: issue costs

Total borrowings

Financial liabilities not classed as borrowings
Total financial habilities

Financial liabilitics not classed as borrowings include amounts payable
ubligations under leases. interest rate swaps and cross-curreney interest rate swaps.

Loans repayable in more than five years are as follows:

Loans repavable after 5 vears:

Senior notes

Senior secured notes
Senior credit facilities
Other debt

Vendor financing

2020 2019
£ million £ million
1.966.4 1.804 .4
3731 3402
9.520).1 9.637.6
CTE8396 117822
432 (45.3)
ClLKI64 11.736.9
960 4) 7579
12.776.4 124948

o parent and group undertakings.

2020 2019
£ million £ million
1.127.1 10572
1.400.1 1.490.%
3.981.6 10146
11.3 75.0
9.520.1 9.637.6

The group enters into vendor financing arrangements to finance certain property and equipment additions and
operating costs, The amounts owed pursuant to these arrangements are interest bearing and include VAT which
was paid on the group’s behalf by the vendor. Repayments of vendor tinancing obligations are included in the
repaviment of borrowings in the Group Cash Flow Statement. The weighted average cost of vendor financing
debt is 4.33%, and is substantially due within | year.

Senior notes

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Senior notes consist of:
LS. Dollar
3.23% senior notes due 2022 (principal at matunity 352 million) - Kh
4.873% senior notes due 2022 (principal at maturity $72 million) - 30
6.00% senior notes due 2024 principal at maturity $497 muilion} - 317
3.75"q senior notes due 2025 {principal at maturity $389 mullion} - 2931
5.0%, senior notes due 2030 (principal at maturity $925 million) 6793 -
6793 7606
Sterling
5.125%4 senjor notes due 2022 (principal at matunty £44 million) - 441
-
Euaro
4 3%, senior notes due 2023 (principal at maturity €460 mullien) 394
3.75% sentor notes due 2030 (principal at maturiy €300 million) RN -
4478 IR92
Less: 1ssue costs (7.6} {6.%)
11195 1873

Total sentor notes
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17 Financial liabilities (continued)

[n June 2020, Virgin Media Finance PLC issued 2030 senior nows with principal amounts of $675.0 milhon.
The net proceeds. together with the May 2020 proceeds were used to redeem in full €460.0 million and $389.0
million outstanding principal amount of 2023 senior notes.

Virgin Media Finance PLC tssued an additional 2030 senior notes with principal amounts of $250.0 million and
€500.0 million. The net procceds frem the issuance of these notes were used (1) to redeem in tull $497 million
outstanding principal amounts of existing 2024 senior notes and 5123.1 millon and £44.7 million outstanding
principal amounts of existing 2022 senior notes and (2) for general corporate purposes.

The new secured notes rank pari-passu with the group's existing secured notes and subject to certain exceptions.
share in the same guarantees and security granted i favour of its existing secured notes.

Senior secured notes

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Sentar secured notes consist of.
U.S. Dollar
5.5%, senior notes due 2026 (principal at maturity $750 million) 3492 3636
5.5%, senior notes duc 2029 (principal at maturity $1.425 million} 1.050.4 1.OK1Y
4.3 senier notes duc 2030 (principal at maturity $9E3 muihon) 674.1 -
22737 L6415
Sterling
6.00°, senior secured notes due 2025 {principal at maturity £321 million) - 340.1
5.00" ¢ senior secured notes due 2027 (principal at matunity £675 million) 6750} 675.0
4.875%, senior secured notes due 2027 iprincipal at maturny £525 million) - 3230
6.23%, senior secured notes due 2029 (principal at maturity £360 million) - 362.0
5.23"%, scnior secured notes due 2029 (principal at maturity £34H) million) 3411 341.2
4.25%, senior sccured notes due 2030 (principal at matueity £400 million) - 206.0
4.253%, sentor secured notes due 2030 (principal at maturity £633 million) 631.0 -
1.123%, senior secured notes due 2030 (principal at maturity €480 milhon) 4793 -
21264 28433
Less: issuc costs (18.9) (18.9)
Total senior secured notes +.381.2 44719

in June 2020, Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC issued 2030 senior secured notes with principal amounts ot
$£630 mullion and £430 mulhon. The net proceeds from the 1ssuance of these notes were used (1} to redeem n
full £525 million vutstanding principal amounts of existing 2027 <enior secured notes. (2) to redeem in full
£360 million outstanding principal amounts of existing 2029 sentor secured notes and (3} v redeem £80 million
of the £321 million outstanding principal amount of existing 2023 senior sccured notes.

In November 2020, Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC issued. via a private placement 2030 sentor secured
netes with principal amounts of $263 million. £233 millien and £30 million. The net proceeds trom the issuance
of these notes were used {1} redeem i tull £341 million vutstanding principal ameounts of existing 2023 senior
secured notes and (2) for general corporate purposes.



Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

17 Financial liabilities (continued)

Seniar credit facility

2020 2019
The nonr-current instualments due on the senior credit faciline consists of £ million £ million
{8, Dollar
VM Facility K
LIBOR + 2.30% scnior credit faciliny due 2026 (principal at matunty $3 404.0 - 248201
million}
VM Facilitv N
LIBOR + 2.530% sentor credit facility due 2028 (principal at maturity $3.300.0 241200 -
million}
Eure
VM Facility O
EURIBOR + 2.50%, senior credit facility due 2029 (principal at 670.3 6334
maturity €750.0 million)
Sterling
VM Facility L
LIBOR~ 3.23% senior credit tacility due 2027 (principal at maturity £400.0 100.0 400.4
million)
VM Facility M
LIBOR- 3.25%s senior credit tacility due 2027 {principal at maturity £300.0 499.2 499.1
million}
39816 +.014.6
Less: issue costs (4o (16.2)
Senior credit facility due after more than ene vear 3967.6 3.998.4
Total senior credit {acility 39676 3.998.4

The Senior Credit Facility requires that certain members ol the Virgin Media Group that generate not less than
80°% of such group’s EBITDA (as defined in the Senior Credit Facilitv) in any financial vear. guarantee the
payment of all sums payable under the Senior Credit Facility and such group members are required to grant
first-ranking security over all or substantially all of their assets to secure the payment of all sums pavable. In
addition. the helding company of cach borrower must give a share pledge over its shares in such borrower.

At 31 December 2020, the senior secured credit facilities of the group included two muln currency tevolving
credit facilities ("Revolving Facility™) Revolving Facility A 15 a mulu currency revolving facility maruring on
31 December 2021 with a maximum borrowing capacity equivalent to £50.0 million. and Revolving Facility B
15 a multi currency revolving facility maturing on 15 January 20234 with a maximum borrowing capacity
equivalent to £950.0 million.

In addition to mandatory prepayments which must be made tor certain disposal proceeds {subject 1o certain de
minimis thresholds), the lenders may cancel their commitments and declare the loans due and pavable after 30
business davs following the occurrence of a change of control in respect of Virgin Media Investment Heldings
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Virgin Media Finance PLC). subject to certain exeeptions.,

A
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Financial liabilities (continued)

The Senior Credit Facibty contams certain customany events of delauhi. the occurrence of which, subject 10
certamt ¢xeeptions and materiality qualifications. would allow the lenders 1w {03 cancel the total commitments,
(11} accelerate abl outstanding loans and terminate their commitments there under and or (ii1) declare that all or
part of the loans be pavable on demand. The Senior Credit Facility contains certain reprasentations and
warranties customary for ftacilities ot this type. which are subject o exceptions, baskets and matenality
qualifications.

The Senior Credit Facility restricts the ability of certain members of the Virgin Media Group to. among other
things. {1} incur or guarantee certain financial indebtedness. (1) make certain disposals and acquisitions and (i)}
create Certain seeurity interests over their assets. in each case. subject to carve-outs from such Iimitations.

The Senior Credit Facility requires the borrowers  observe certain affirmative undertakings or covenants,
which cosenants are subject to materiality and other customary and agreed exceptions. In addition. the Senior
Credit Facility also requires compliance with various financial covenants such as Scnior Net Debt 1o Annualised
EBITDA and Total Net Debt v Annualised EBITDA. cach capitalised term: as detined in the Senior Credit
Facility.

I addition to customary defauit provisions. the Senior Credit Facility provides that any event of default with
respeet to indebtedness of £30.0 mullion or more n the aggregate of the company. and its subsidiaries is an
event ¢f default under the Senior Credit Facility.

The Senior Credit Facility permits certain members of the Virgin Media Group to make certain distributions
and restricted pavments to its parent company (and indirectly 1o Liberty Global) through loans. advances or
dividends subject to compliance with applicable covenants.

Restrictions
The agreements governing the senior notes. sentor seeured notes and the senior eredit tacility signilicandy | and.
i some cases. absolutely restrict the group's ability and the ability of moest of its subsidiaries to:

e incur or guarantee additional indebtedness:

¢ pay dividends or make other distributions, or redecm or repurchase equity interests or subordinated
vbligations:

s make investments:

e sell assets. including shares m subsidiaries:

e create liens;

e enter mto agreements that restrict the restricted subsidiaries” abihity to pay dividends, ranster assets or
make intercompany loans:

+ merge of consolidate or transter substantially all of the group's asscts: and

e ¢nterinte transactions with affiliates,

Leases

General
The group enters into leases tor network equipment. real estate and ehicles.

ROU gssets
Right-ol-use asscts related to leased propertics that do not meet the definition of investment propery are
presented as property. plant and equipment.

n
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18 Leases (continued)

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Land and Build - 114
Network 10.4 8.2
Other 16%.1 181.5
1785 2011

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial vear were £29.0 million (2019 - £47.0 mllion).

Amounts recognised in profit
The income statement shows the following amounts related to leases:

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Depreciation charge of right-ot-use assets:
Land and Build - 1.5
Network 2. 34
Other 3501 371
37z 120
Interest cxpense 10.2 10.8
Shert-term lease expense o -
474 52.8
The total cash outtlow tor leases in 2020 was £43 .0 million (2019 - £48.0 million).
Lease liabilities
Maturities ot our lease ligbilities as of December 31. 2020 are presented below:
2020 2019
£ million £ million
L¢ss than onc vear 41.1 46.3
Onge o five vears 111.2 1317
More than five years 191.5 197.6
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 308 3756
Impact of inance expenses {136.7) {154.1)
Lease liability included in the statement of tinanciul position 2041 2215
Current 319 335
Non current 1722 188.0
20401 2215

tn
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Provisions
Property
related Other
costs provisions Total
£ million £ million £ million
At 31 December 2019 and | January 2020
Current 1.4 2.2 36
Non-current 122.1 2.9 1249
1233 s 1286
Established during the vear 4.0 13.8 17.8
Used during the year (3.7) (133 {(17.0)
Revisions in cashflow estimates 0.6 - 0.6
Movement in discount rate (36.3) - (56.3)
On disposal ol subsidiary to related party (2.9) - {29)
AL 31 December 2020 652 3.6 70.%
Analvsed as:
Current 1.6 1.1 2.7
Non-current 63 .6 4.5 63,1
632 5.6 708

Properity reluied costs
Property related costs expected to be incurred are mainly in relation o dldapidations c¢osts on leaschold
propertics. The majonty of the costs are expected to be incurred over the next 235 vears.

Other provisions
Other provision clements mainly consist of National Insurance contributions on share options and restricied
stock unit grants and redundancy costs resulting from restructuring programmes.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The group's principal tinancial liabilities. vther than derivatives. comprise bank loans (senior eredit facility).
senior notes. senior sceured notes, finance leases. vendor tinancing. trade pavabies, hire purchase contracts and
loans made to parent. fellow group undertakings and related parties. With the exception of trade payables the
main purpose of the financial labilities 1s to raise finance for the Virgin Media group's operativns. The group
has various fmancial assets such as trade receinvabies and cash and short term deposits, which arise directly tfrom
1ts operations.

The group 1s exposed to various market risks. including credit risk. toreign exchanye rate risk. liquidity risk and
tniterest rate risk. Market risk is the potennal loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. As
some of the group’s indebtedness acerucs interest at variable rates there 15 exposure to volathty in future cash
flows und carmings associated with variable interest pavments.

Interest and pringipal obligations on some indebtedness are in U.S. dollars and curos. As a resull the group has
exposure to volatility in tuture cash flows and carnings associated with changes in forcign exchange rates on
pavments of mterest and principal amounts on a portion of its indebtedness.

The group has entered into various derivative instruments to manage intercst rate risk, and foreign exchange
risk with respect to the US. dollar and curo. comprising of interest rate swaps. cross-curfency interest rate
swaps and toreign currency torward contracts. The objective is to reduge the volatlity ot the group's cash flows
and eamings caused by changes i underlving rates,

The main risks arising from the group's financial liabilities are described below:

Taterest rute Fivh

The group 1» subject Lo interest rate risk because 11 has substannal indebtedness at variable rates of interest. At
2] December 2020, before taking into account hedging instruments. interest is determined on a variable basis
on £3.981.6 mullion (2019 - £4.014.6 million) or 34% 12019 - 327} of indebtedness. relating solely 10 amounts
drawn down on the senior eredit tacalities. The group aims to reduce the volatlity of its cash flows and carmings
as a result of fluctuations ininterest rates through the use of derivative financial instruments.

th
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Interest rate visk profile of financial assets
The group’s financial assets include cash on money market depesit at call, seven day and monthly rates. and
amounts owed by parent undertakings and related parties charged at vartable interest rates.

Sensitivity analvsis of changes in interest rales

[nterest rate risks are presented by way of a sensitivity analysis in accordance with [FRS 7 ‘Finencial
Instruments: Disclosures’. These show the etfects ot changes in market interest rates on anterest pavments.
interest income and expense. other components and, as appropriate. equity. The imterest rate sensitvity analyses
are based on the following assumpuions:

¢  Changes in markel interest rates of non-derivative financial instruments with fixed interest rates only
aftect income i measured at fair value. As such. all financial instruments with fixed interest rates that
are carried at amortised cost dre not subject to interest rate risk as defined by [FRS 7.

e  Changes in market interest rates affect the wnterest income or expense of non-denvative variable-
interest financial instruments. the interest payments of which arc not designated as hedged items of
cash flow hedges against interest rate risks. As a consequence, they are included in the calculation of
interest rate scnsitivities.

¢ Changes in the market interest rate of interest rate derivatives (interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest rate swaps) that are not part of a hedging relationship as set out in [FRS % “Financial
Instruments” atfect gains or losses on derivatives and are therefore taken into consideration n the
calculation of interest rate sensitivities.

e  Foreign currency forward rate contracts are not subject to interest rate risks and theretore do not attect
nterest rate sensitivities.

Based on debt at 31 December 2020, including ameunts owed to and due from parent and group undertakings.
and taking into consideration hedging instruments. a (£.253% movement in market interest rates would result in
an annual increase or decrease in the gross mrerest income. expense of £11.9 million (2019 - a 0.25% movement
in market mierest rates would result in an annual increase or decrcase in the gross interest income expense of
£8.6 million). Moyements in gross interest expense would be recognised in finance income and tinance costs in
the Group Income Statement.

Foretgn currency exchange raie risk

The group is also subject o foreign currency exchange risks because interest and princtpal obligations with
respect to a portion of its indebtedness is denominated in U.S. dollars and curos. To the extent that the pound
declines in value agamst the U.S. dollur and the curo. the ctlective cost of servicing US. dollar and curo
denominated debt will be higher. Chuanges in the exchange rate result in foreign currency gains or lasses.

As ot 31 December 2020 the group had £5.365.1 million (2019 - £4.890.3 million). or 4576 {2019 — 41%0) uf
external indebtedness, denommated in ULS. dollars and £1.118.1 milhon {2019 - £1.022.9 million). or 9%5 (2019
— 9%4) of external indebtedness. denominated in cures (see note 17). The group has a programme in place ©
mitigate the risk of losses arising from adyerse changes in foreign curreney exchange rates which uses a number
of derivatse financial mstruments. When taking into consideration cross curreney interest rate swaps and
foreign currency torward rate contracts. the majority of cxternal debt is hedged agamst foreign cuwrrency
exchange rate risk.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 the group had foreign currency gains of £170.7 million (2019 gains ol
£200.7 million).

The gains tor the vears ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were primarily due tw the strengthening ot pound
sterling relative to the US. dollar in respeet ot the LS. dollar denominated debt issued by the group. partially
offset by the weakening of pound sterling refative to the eure in respect of cure denominated debt.

]
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Sensutivity analysis of changes in forelgn clorency exchange rates

For the presentation of market risks. IFRS 7. 'Financial Tnstruments: Disclosures” requires sensitnvity analvsis
that shows the effects of hypothetical changes of foreign currency exchange rates of relevant risk variables on
profit or luss and sharcholders’ equity. The periodic etteets are determined by relating the hypothetical changes
in risk variables to the balunce of financial instruments at the reporting date. It 15 assumed that the balance at the
reporting date 1s representative of the vear as a whole.

Currency risks are detined by [FRS 7 as arising on account of financial mstruments being denominated in a
currency other than the functionul currency and being of a monetary nature. Relevant risk varnables are
venerally all non-functional currencies in which the group has financial liabilities. excluding amounts due 1o
parcnt undertakings.

The currency »ensitivity analvsis is based on the tollowing assumptions:

Major non-derivative monetary tinancial instruments (Lquid assets, receivables and tinance lease labilites) are
directly denominated in the functional currency. There are theretore no foreign exchange tluctuations in respect
of these instruments which have an effect on profit or loss or sharcholders' equity. [nterest income and expense
from tinancial instruments are also either recorded in the functional currency or transterred to the tunctional
currency using deriyatives,

The group has a number of dervative instruments with various counterparties 10 manage Its exposure to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Exchange rate fluctuations. on which the financial mstruments are
based. affect gains or losses on derivatives in the finance income or finance costs lines. respectively. of the
Giroup Income Statement.

The tollowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the pound sterling against
LS. dollar and euro exchange rates with all other variables remaining constant. of the group's profit before tax.
Due to toreign exchange wranslation of monetary assets and ltabiliies. the impact of wanslating the net asscts of
toreign operations inte sterling is excluded from the sensitivity analysis:

Increase/ Effect on
decrease in profit/{loss)
exchange before tax
rates £ million
2020
Sterling U.S. dollar =20 436.6
Sterling LS. dollar =200, (2.028.6)
Sterling euro =20, 3598
Sterling curo 2200, {254
2019
Sterling LS. dollar —20%, 8213
Sterling U.S. dollar 200 (1,.232.0y
Sterling curo =2y 266.2
Sterling curo S20%, (116.3)

Ligudity risk and caprtal management

The company s a wholly owned subsidiary and its uluimate parent company is Liberty Global ple. Capital
management policies are operated at a Virgin Media group level by the management of Liberty Global ple. The
agreements that gos ern the Virgin Media group's indebtedness sct out financial maintenance tests and restricuve
covenants, and 1t s the policy of the Virgin Media group to maintain adequate headroom against these tests and
COVETdnts.

[ ]
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20 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

The group's business is capital intensive and the group is highly leveraged. The group has significant cash
requirements for operating costs. capital expenditure and interest expense. The level of the group's capital and
operating expenditures are affected by significant amounts of capital required to connect customers to the
network, expand and upgrade the network and offer new services. Cash on hand. together with cash from
operativns and an undrawn credit facility, are expected to be sufficient for the group's cash requirements
threugh to 12 months from the date of this report. The group has significant scheduled repayments that may
need to be finunced through means other than reliance on cash flow from operations. such as raising additional
debr or equity, refinancing the existing facility, possible loans trom parent undertakings or related parties, sale
of assets or other means. It may not be possible to obtain adequate financing, or sell assets at all. or on
tavourable terms. or the terms ol the sentor credit facility or senior notes may prevent the group from incurring
addinonal indebtedness or selling assets.

As ol 31 December 2020 the group had £12.020.5 milhen ol ¢xternal debt {including tinance leases, vendor
financing and net of deferred nance costs) owstanding, compared to £11.958.4 million as of 31 December
2019 and cash and cash equivalents of £19.3 million compared to £33.9 million at 31 December 2019,

The principal amount outstanding under the senior credit facility at 31 December 2020 was £3.981.6 million
(2019 - £4.014.6 million). The senior credit facility comprises two term facilities denominated in pounds
sterlmg of £400.0 million and £499.0 million respectively (2019 — £400.0 million and £499.0 million), one term
tacitity denominated in U.S. dollar of £2.412.1 million (2019 - £2.482.0 million). one term facility denomunated
in euro of £670.3 million (2019 - £633.4 million) and one revolving facility of £1.000.0 million {2019 -
£1.000.0 million). At 31 December 2020. £3.981.6 million (2019 - £4.014.6 million} of the term facilities net of
issue costs had been drawn. The group had £673.0 million available of its revolving credit tacilities for bank
guarantees and standby letters of credit.

The group does not have any scheduled principal payments on its senior notes and senior credit Facility until
2027. However, if the group was unable to mect repayment conditions or service these obligations through cash
flows trom operations. then it woeuld need 1o secure additional funding such as raising additional debt or equity.
refinancing the existing tacility, selling assets or using other means. 1t may not be possthle to obtain tinancing
or sell assety, at all or on favourable terms. or the group may be contractually prevented by the wrms of its
senior notes or senior credit facility from incurring additional indebtedness or selling assets,

A maturity analysis of financial liabilities. outstanding at 31 December. showing the remaining contractual
undiscounted amounts payable. including {nterest commitments. is shown below:

Less Greater than
than | year 1to 5 vears 5 vears Total
2020 £ million £ million £ million £ million
Senior credit facility, senior notes and senior
sccured notes 4870 2.006.¥ 10.598.2 134820
Vendor financing 20261 97.9 6.3 2013003
Finance lease and hire purchasc contracts 41,1 108.1 191.4 3406
Derivative contracts 346 4407 280.6 7359
2019
Senior credit facility. sentor notes and senior
secured notes 5453 3.160.3 99397 13,6653
Vendor tinancing 1.871.7 811 - 1.952.8
Finance lease and hire purchase contracts 8.6 282 13406 [71.4
Derivative contracts 638 16%.6 272.0 3364

A
|



Virgin Mecdia Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

20 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

21

The above amounts exelude other financial Liabilities. such as trade pavables. which arc all repavable in less
than one vear. Amounts owed to parent and group undertakings have also been excluded as they are repavable
on demand.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The group's tinancial instruments that are exposed to concentrations ot credit
risk consist primarily ot cash. trade receivables and derivative contracts.

At 31 December 2020, the group had £19.3 million {2019 - £33.9 million} in cash and cash equivalents. These
cash and cash cquivalents are on deposit with a number of major financial institutions and. as part of the group's
cash management process. regular evaluations of the credit standing ot these institutions are pertormed using a
range ol metrics. The group has not experienced any losses in cash balances and management do not believe it
15 exposed to any signiticant credit risk on its cash balances.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect o trade reccivables are limited because of the large number of
customers and their distribution across a wide geographic area. The group performs eredit evaluations of its
business customers” financial condition and generally does not require coellateral. Ne single group or customer
represcnts greater than 10 of total accounts receivable.

Concentrations ot credit risk with respect to dertvative contracts are focused within a limited number of
mternational financial institutions with which the group transacts and relate only to derivatives with recorded
asset balances. The Libertv Global group performs regular reviews of the financial institutions with which 1t
transacts as to their credit worthiness and tinancial condition. The group includes a credit risk adjustment based
upon the credit detault swap spread 1n the valuation of derivative instruments. however. the group does not
expect there to be any significant non-performance risks associated with ils counterpartics.

Financial Instruments
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - Financial Risk Management

The company and group have obligations in a combination of US dellars. curos. and pounds sterling at lixed
and vanable mterest rates. As a result the group is exposed 1o variability in its cash flows and camings resulting
{rom changes in foreign currency cxchange rates and interest rates.

The group’s objective in managing its ¢xposure to inwerest rates and foreign currency exchange rates is to
decrease the volaulity of its carnings and cash tlows caused by changes i the underlving rates. The group has
established policies und procedures to govern these exposures and has entered into derivative financial
mstruments including interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward rame
conrracts.  Subsidiaries of Virgin Media Finance PLC hold financial instruments which hedge the foreign
currency risk of debt issued by its tellow group undertakings. It is the group's policy not to enter into derivatne
financial instruments for speculative trading purposes. nor to enter into derivative tinancial instruments with a
level of complexity or with a risk that is greater than the exposure 1o be managed. The amounts below nclude
amounts relating to short term as welk as long term payables.

With the exception of a limited number of interest rate swaps. the group has clected not to designate derisative
instruments as accountng hedges, although these remain cconomic hedges.

]
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Included within current assets:

Fuair value hedges
[nterest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps

Dertvatives nol designaled us hedgey
[nterest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Foreign Currency Forward Contract

Included within non-current assets.
Fuir value hedges
[nterest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps

Included within current liablities:
Dertvatives not designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Forcign Currency Forward Contract

Included within non-current liabilities.
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Interest rate swaps
Cross-currency interest rate swaps

The fair values ot derivative tinancial instruments recognised in the Group Balance Sheet are as tfollows:

2020 2019
£ million £ million
5.2 17.7
- 38
a8 4 276
226 313
B (}.:1__ -
66.6 824
- 8.9
- 376
110.7 733
169.0 3109
2797 4309
93.2 126.1
LEN 7.0
R A
148.2 1336
2957 241.0
3120 161.8
607.7 1028

Cross-currency interest rate swaps - hedging the principal and interest pavments of senior notes and

senior credit facility

The terms ot the group’s outstanding cross-currency interest rate swaps, which are used to mitigate the nterest
and foreign exchange rate risks relating to the pound sterling value of principal and interest pavments on ULS.
dollar and cure denominated senior notes and senior secured notes at 31 December 2026 were as follows:

Final maturity
date of hedges

January 2021 - January 2028
Januarv 2025

July 2028

July 2028

Hedge type

Not designated
Not designated
Not designated
Not designated

N
O

Notional
amount

due from
counterparty
million
5114990
£1.005.5
5166.6
£500.0

Notional
amount
due to
counterparty
million
£8.699.5
S1.445.0
€150.0
£445.6

Weighted
average
remaining
life

3.5

4.1

7.5
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21 Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate swaps - hedging of interest rate sensitive obligations

As of 31 December 2020. the group had outstanding interest rate swap agreements o manage the exposure 1o
variability in future cash flows on the interest payments associated with its senior credit facility which accrues
at variable rates based on LIBOR. The group has also entered into interest rate swap agreements [0 manage its
exposure to changes in the farr value of certain debt obligations due to interest rate fluctuations, The interest
rate swaps allow the group to recerve or pay interest based on six month LIBOR or fixed rates in exchange ftor
payments or receipts of interest at six month LIBOR or fixed rates.

The terms of the group’s outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Final maturity

date of hedge Hedge type Pay fixed rate Receive fixed rate
Weighted Weighted
Notional average Notional average
million remaining life million remaining life
January 2021 - Janaury 202X Not designated El4.402.4 3X £3.330.8 4.2

The netional amounts of multiple derfvative struments that mature within the same calendar month are shown
In aggregale.

Interest rate swaptions

The group has entered into varnous interest rate swap optiens (swaptions). which give the right. but no
obligation. to enter into certain interest rate swap contracts at set dates in the future. with each such contract
having a life of ne more than three vears. At the transaction date. the strike rate of cach of these contacts was

above the corresponding market rate.

The terms of outstanding interest rate swap option contracts at 31 December 2020 were as (ollows:

Notional Weighted Weighted

amount Underlying  average option average

due from swap expiration strike

Final maturity date Hedge type counterparty currency period rate
million Yo

Qctober 2022 - January 2027 Not designated £1.936.2 GBP 0.2 241

Basis Swaps

The terms of outstunding basis swap contracts at 31 December 2020 were ax follows:

Weighted

average

Notional remaining

Final maturity date Hedge type amount life
million

Julv 2021 Not designated £EG00.0 0.3

July 2021 Not designated 3.300.0 0.5
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Foreign currency forward options and forward contracts

The group has cntered into external foreign currency torward options and foreign currency forward contracts in
arder to manage foreign currency exposure risk with respect to Indian rupee {INR).

Foreign currency forward options
The tollowing toreign currency torward options with a third party were in place at 31 December 2020:

Exchange currency Notional amount
million
Indian rupee £0.5

Foreign currency forward contracts
The tollowing foreign currency forward contracts with a related party were in place at 31 December 2024):

Maturity dates Currency purchase forward Currency sold forward

milllion milllion
January 2021 - December 2021 $43.7 £33.9
January 2021 - December 2021 €499 346
January 2021 - December 2021 £3.9 g52

Interest Rate Caps and Floors

From time to time, we enter into interest rate cap and floor agreements. Purchased interest rate caps lock in a
maximum interest rate if vanable rates rise. but also allow cur company to benetit from declines in market
rates. Purchased interest rate floors protect us trom interest rates talling below a certain level. generally to
match a floating rate floor on a debt instrument. At December 31, 2020, the pound sterling equivalent notional
amounts of our purchased interest rate caps and tloors were £1.568 4million and £3.317.4 milion. respectively.

Cash flow hedges

The group has elected not to designate derivative instruments as accounting hedges. although these remain
cconomic hedges. The group has recognised effective portion of gains on losses n the unrealised gains and
fusses in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income as result of historic dernvative imstruments that were
designated as cash tlow hedges and hedges of commerceial operational contracts,

Changes in the fair values of derivanye instruments are recorded as gains or losses on derivative 1nstruments in
the Group Income Statement in the period in which they occur. The following table presents movements in
Other Comprehensive Income related to cash flow hedges for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Cross
currency
interest rate
Total swaps Tax effect
£ million £ million £ million
Balance at 31 December 2019 10.7 (1.2} 20L9
Amounts recogmised tn Statement of
Comprehensive Income reclassified W eamings 4.7 4.7 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 15.4 5.5} 20.9

Included within amounts reclassified to earnings 15 £4.7 million {2019 - £3.4 mullion) of net fosses that have
been recycled from the cash flow hedge reserve through the income statement in respect of swaps for which
cither designation was revoked. or the hedged instrument was settled as part of refinancing acuvites.
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Fair value hedges
For derivatne instruments that are designated and quality as fair value accounting hedyges. the gain or loss on
derivatives 18 recognised in the Group Income Statement in the period in which they oceur. wgether with anv
changes 1 the tair value of the hedged debt obligations due to changes in the hedged risks.
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Set out below Is a comparison by category of carrving values and tair values ot the group's financial assets and
tinancial liabitities. where different. as at 3{ December:

2020 2020 2019 2019
Carrying value Fair value Carrving value Fair value
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Senior credit tacility {3.967.6) (3.961.2) {3,998 4} (4.126.%)
5.25% U.S. dollar senior notes due 2022 - - RER] (39.7)
4.8753%, U.S. dollar senior notes due 2022 - - (340 (55.0)
3.125% pound sterling senior notes due 2022 - - (++.2) (440
a6, .S, dollar senior notes due 2024 - - (372.6) {387.3)
4.5% euro sentor notes due 2023 - - (386.7) (4.7
3.75% LS, dollor senior notes due 2025 - - {291.4) {302.5)
6.0" s pound sterling senior secured notes due 2025 - - (339.%) (373.6)
5394 U.S, dollar senior sceured notes duc 2026 (346.3) (372.7) (561.7) (595.9)
4.875% pound sterling senior secured notes due 2027 - - {323.6) 1549.9)
5.0%s pound sterling senior secured notes due 2027 (672.5) (9N (672.1) (717.6)
6.25% pound sterling sentor secured notes due 2029 - - (360.7) (3853}
5.530% U.S dollar senior secured notes due 2029 {1.046.4) (1.134.2) {1.077.3) (1.142.4)
3.25% pound sterling senior sceured notes due 2029 (340.1) (367.9) (340.1) (368.9)
4.25% pound sterling senior secured notes due 2030 (627.3) (655.7) {396.h (408.5)
4.30% U.S dollar senior secured notes due 203() {671.8) (704.1) - -
+4.125%, pound sterling sentor secured notes due 2030 (477.1) (490.9) - -
5.0% U.S dullar senior notes due 2034 (674.3) (707.9) - -
3.75% euro senior notes duc 2030 (+45.3) {4571} - -

The carrying values of amounts not listed aboye approximate their fair values,

The group uses the following hierarchy tor determining and disclosing the tair value of financial snstruments by
vabuation technique:

Level 1 Unadjusted queted priges in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or habilitics: or
Unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active: or
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable tor the asset or liability.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or hability,

The group endeavours to utilise the best availabie information in measuring fair value. Financial asscts and
biabilities are classitied in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that 1s signiticant to the fair value
measurement.
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21 Financial Instruments (continued)

As at 31 December 2020. the fair value of the financial instruments held by the group is as lollows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Financial assets ar fair value

Cash, short term deposits and restricted cash 39.0 - - 390
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - 191.6 - 191.6
[nterest rate swaps - 1543 - 1543
Foreign currency torward rate contracts - n4 - 0.4
390 3363 - 3053

Financial liabilities at fair value
Senior credit facility 39612 - - 39612
Senior notes 1.165.0 - - 1.165.0
Scnior securcd notes 4.635.4 - - +.635.4
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - 3651 - 3651
[nterest rate swaps - 3709 18.0 3889
Foreign currency toerward rate contracts - 1.9 - 1.9
9.761.6 737.9 18.0 10.517.5

In estimating the fair value of other tinancial instruments. the group used the following methods and
assumptions:

Cush and short term deposits, and restricted cash: The carrving amounts reported in the Group Balance Sheet

approximate fair value due te the short maturity and nature of these financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments: As a result of the group’s financing activities. it is exposed to market risks

tfrom changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates, which may adversely atfect iis operating results

and financial position. When deemed appropriate. the group minimises risks [rom interest and foreign currency
exchange rate [luctuations through the use ol derivative financial nstruments. The foreign currency forward
rale contracts, interest rale swaps {excluding swaptions) and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued using
broker quotations. or market transactions in cither the listed or over-the counter markets. adjusted for non-

performance risk. As such. these dervative instruments are classiticd within level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy.

Due to the lack of Level 2 inputs for the swaption valuations. the group believe these valuations fall under

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Senior notes. senior secured notes and senior credit facifin: The fair values of the senior credit facility. senior
notes and senior secured notes in the above table are based on the quoted market prices in active markets for the
underlying third party debt and incorporate nen-performance risk. Accordmngly. the inputs used to value the

sentor notes and sentor secured notes are classitied within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the vear. there were no translers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3.
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22 Discontinued operation

On 30 November 2020 the group sold its [rish subsidiary UPC Breadband [reland Limited to another subsidiary off
Liberty Global. Newceo Holdeo 3 Limited. that 1s eutside of the Virgin Media Group. This has heen reported in the
current year as a discontinued operation. Financial information relating to the discontinued operation tor the period
to the date of disposal is set out below.

Financial performance and cash flow informarion

The financial intformation presented is for the 11 month peried ended 30 November 2020 (2020 column} and the
vear ended 31 December 2019 {2019 column).

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Revenue 3082 3325
Expenses {299.%) (2929
Profit before income tax o 34 39.6
Income tax expense - -
Protit after income tax s 8.4 39.6
Gain on sale HOR.S -
Profit from discontinued operation C 6769 39.6
Exchange ditference on translation _ g4y {9.3)
Other comprehensive income frem discontinued operation (9.4) 19.5)
For cash flow information in relation to the discontinued eperation please see the Group Cash Flow Statement
an page 26.
Details of the sale of the subsidiary
2020
£ million
Consideration receivable:

Cash 4788
Carrving amounts ot net habtlities sold o Re
Gain on sale before income tax 668.5
[ncome tax on gain . -
Lratn on sale after tax 568.2
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22 Discontinued operation (continued)

The carrying amounts of assets and Labilities as at the date of sale (30 November 20240 were:

30 November 2020

£ million

Intangible asscls 163.6
Property. plant and equipment 3698
Other long term assets 30
Inventory 23
Trade and other receivables 411
Cash 13.3
Total assets 393.3
Trade and other payables (120.0)
Pension liability (6.1)
Other long term pavables (658.9)
Net liabilities (189.7)

23 Equity share capital

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000

Allotted, called up and fully puid.

76,184 {2019 - 76.1%4) ordinary shares ot £1 each 76 76

24 Share-based payments

The group’s employvecs are entitled to partake in Liberty Global ple share-based schemes. These share schemes
consist of stock options and performance plans including stock appreciation rights ("SARs™). performance-
based share appreciation rights ("PSARsT), restricted stock, restricted stock umts ("RSUs™) and pertormance
share units ("PSUs™). The schemes provide share based compensation to individuals under the conditions
describe below. The grant date fair values tor options, share appreciation rights (SARs) and performance-based
share appreciation rights {(PSARs) are estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and the grant
date fur values for restnicted share units {RSUs) and performance-based restricted share units {PSUs) are based
upon the ¢losing share price of Liberty Global ordinary shares on the date of grant. We calculate the expected
life of options and SARs pranted by Liberty Global to employees based on historical exercise trends. The
arrangements are equity settled with the emplovees. Liberty Global recharges the group for share schemes made
available o the group employees.

Full detailed information on the group’s share based pavments are disclesed in the financial statements of
Virgin Media Inc. which are available on Liberty Global's website at ww w.ltbertvgiobal.com.

The income staternent charge tor share based payments for the year was £31.6 million {2009 £45.1 miilion).

ol
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Liberty Global Share Incentive Plans

As of Decerber 31. 2020. Liberty Global is authorized to grant incentive awards under the Liberty Global 2014
[ncentive Plan. Generally. the compensation commuttee of Liberty Glebal's board of direcrors may grant non-
yualified share options. SARs. restricted shares. RSUs, cash awards. perfermance awards or any combination of
the foregomg (collecrively. awards). Ordinary shares 1ssuable pursuant to awards made under these incentive
plans will be made availabic from cither authorized but unissued shares or shares that have been 1ssued but
reacquired by Liberty Global. Awards may be granted at or aboy ¢ fair value in any ¢lass ol ordinary shares. The
maximum number of Liberty Global shares with respect to which awards may be issued under the Liberty
Global 2014 Incentive Plan is 153 million {of which oo more than 50.23 million shares may consist ot Class
B ordinary shares). subject to anti-dilution and other adjustment provisions i the respective plan. As of
December 310 2020. the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan had 60,799,181 ordinary shares available for grant.

Awards (other than performance-based awards} under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan generally (i) vest
(a) prior to 2020. 12.5°, on the s1x month anniversary of the grant date and then at a rate of 6.25% each quarter
thereafter and (b) commencing m 2020, annually over a three-year pertod and iny expire (1} prior o 2019,
seven years after the grant date and (2) commencing m 2019, 10 vears after the grant date. RSUs vest on the
date of the first annual general meeting of Liberty Global shareholders tollowing the grant date.

Liberty Glebal Performance Awards

The following is a summary of the malerial terms and conditions with respect to Liberty Global's performance-
basced awards for certain executive officers and key employees for which awards were granted under the Liberty
Global [ncentive Plan and the Virgin Media Incentive Plan.

Libern Global PSUs

In April 2019, the compensation commitiee of Liberty Global's board of dircctors approved the grant ot PSUs
to executive otficers and kev emplovees (the 2019 PSUs) pursuant to a pertermance plan that 15 based on the
achievement of a specitied OCF CAGR during the two-vear period ending December 31, 2020. The 2019 PSUs
include over- and under-performance payout opportunities should the OCF CAGR exceed or fail to meet the
target. as applicable. A performance range of 50% to 125% ot the target OCF CAGR will generally result in
award recipients carning 50% 1o 150, of their target 2019 PSUs, subject to reduction or forteiture based on
individual performance. The camed 2019 PSUs will vest 30% on April 1. 2021 and 50 on October 1. 2021.

During 2018, the compensation commiltee of Liberty Global™s board of directors approved the grant of PSUs to
exceutive officers and kev employvees (the 2018 PSUsy pursuant w a performance plan that is based on the
achicvement of a specificd OCF CAGR during the two-year peried that ended on December 31, 2019, The 2018
PSUs include over- and under performance pavout vpportunitics should the OCF CAGR exceed or fail to meet
the target. as applicable. A performance range of 30%s to 123%6 of the target OCF CAGR will generaily result in
award recipients earning 30°% w 150%y of their target 2018 PSUs. subject to reduction or forfeiture based on
ndividual pertormance. The eamned 2018 PSUs will vest 50%% on each ot Apnil 1. 2020 and 50°» on October 1.
2020, The target OCF CAGR for the 2018 PSUs was determined on October 26. 2018 and. accordingly.
assogiated compensation expense has been recognized prospectively trom that date.

In February 2016, Liberty Global's compensation committee approved the grant of PSUs 1o exccutive officers
and key employees (the 2016 PSUs). The performance plan for the 2016 PSUs covered a three-year period that
ended on December 31, 2018 and included a pertormance target based on the achicvement of a specified
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) in an Adjusted EBITDA metric {as defined in the applicable underlving
agreement). The pertormance target was adjusted for events such as acquisitions, dispositions and changes in
tureign curreney exchange rates that affect comparability (Adjusted EBITDA CAGR). The 2016 PSUs. as
adjusted through the 2017 Award Modification. required dehvery of an Adjusted EBITDA CAGR of 6.0%
during the three-vear performance period tor Liberty Global depending on the respective class of shares
underlying the award. Participants carned 82.3% of their targeted awards under the 2016 PSUs. which vested
30%s on cuch of April 1. 2019 and October 1. 2019.
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Liberty Global Challenge Performance Awards

Effective 24 June 2013, Liberty Global's compensation committee approved the Challenge Performance
Awards, which consisted solely of PSARs for Liberty Global's senior executive officers and a combination ot
PSARs and PSUs for other execurive officers and kev employees. Fach PSU represented the right te receive
one Liberty Global or LILAC Class A or Class C ordinary share. as appheable. The performanee criteria for the
Challenge Performance Awards was based on the participant’s performance and achievement of individual
goals in each of the years 2013, 2014 and 2013, As a result of satisfying performance conditions. 100% of the
then outstanding Challenge Performance Awards vested and became fully exercisable on 24 June 2016. The
PSARs have a term ot seven years and base prices equal to the respective market closing prices ot the
applicable class on the grant date.

Virgin Media Stock Incentive Plans

Equity awards were granted to certain of the group™s emplovees. prior o Liberty Global's acquisition of Virgin
Media in June 2013, under certain inceative plans maintained and administered by the group and no new grants
will be made under these incentive plans. The equity awards granted include stock vplions. restricted shares.
RSUs and performance awards. Awards under the VM Incentive Plan have a 10-vear term and become fully
exercisable within five vears of continued emplovment.

25 Reserves

Equitv share capiral
The balance classified as share capital represents the nominal value on issue of the company's equity share
capital. comprising £1 ordinarv shares.

Share premium aceount
Share premiurm represents the amount of consideration received for the company's equity share capital in excess
of the nominal value ot shares 1ssued.

Other capilal reserves comprising merger resevve and capitul cortributions
The results of subsidiary undertaukings acquired through group reorganisations have given risc to the
requircment to make adjustments on consolidation in the merger reserve.

Unrealised guins and losses

This reserve records the portion of gain or loss on hedging instruments that are determined to be effective
hedges. and the exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations.

Foreign currency translution reserve

This reserve records the gain or loss on the retranslation of subsidiary undertakings with functional currencies

other than pound sterling.

Rewined earnings
This reserve records all current and prior period retained protit and losses.

26 Capital commitments

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Amounts contracted tor but not provided in the accounts 431.2 331.7
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Contingencies

On 19 March 2014, the UK govermnment announced a change in legislagon with respect to the charging of VAT
In connection with prompt pavment discounts such as those that the group offer to fixed-line telephony
customers. This change. which took cffect on | May 2014, impacted the group and some of its competitors. The
UK tax authority issued a decision in the fourth quarter of 20135 challenging the group’s application ot the
prompt payment discount rules prior to the | May 2014 change in fegisiation. The group appealed this decision.
As part of the appeal process. the group were required to make aggregate payments ol £67.0 million.
comprising of the challenged amount of £63.7 million (which the group patd during the tfourth quarter ot 2013)
and related interest of £3.3 million (which the group paid during the first quarier of 20161, No provision was
recorded by the group at that time as the likelihood of loss was not considered to be probable. The aggregate
amount paid does not include penaltics. which could be significant in the event that penalties were to be
assessed. In September 2018, the court rejected the group's appeal and ruled in favour of the UK tax authority.
Accordingly. during the third quarter of 2015, the group recorded a provision for litigation of £63.7 million and
related interest expense of £3.3 millien in the group’s income statement. The First Tier Tribunal gave
permission to appeal to the Upper Tribunal and the group submitted grounds for appeal on 22 February 2019.
The group subsequently lost the appeal at the Upper Tribunal and in October 2020 our request to further appeal
the case was denied by the Court of Appeal.

Pension and other post-retirement benefits

The group operates two defined benefit schemes in the UK, the NTL Pension Plan and the 1999 ntl Pension
Scheme which provide both pensions in retirement and death benetits w members. Pension benetits are related
to the members”™ final salary at retirement and their length of service.

Axs at 31 December 2019. the group also held a detined benefit scheme i Ireland. Virgin Media Ireland Limited
Defined Benefit Plan, which was dispesed of with the sale of its subsidiary UPC Broadband Ireland Limited on
2} November 2020 (see note 22).

Defined contribution plans

The group contributes to the Virgin Media spensored group personal pension plans of cligible emplovees.
Contribuions are charged to the Group Income Statement as they become pavable. in accordance with the rules
of the plans.

Contributions to the defined contribution plans during the period were £29.5 million (2019 - £27.6 million).
The amoeunt of outstanding conmbutions at 31 December 2020 included within current liabilities was £4.2
million {2019 - £4.1 million).

Defined benefit plans
The group recognises any actuarial gains and losses in each period in the Group Statement of Comprehensive
[ncome.

« 1999 ntl Pension Scheme

A subsidiary. Virgin Media Limited. operates 2 tunded pension plan providing defined benetits (71999 nil
Pension Plan™). The plan has never been opened o new entrants except when the plan began and subsequently
on 31 May 2007, on both occasions new members were transferred from other existing plans. The Plan was
closed to future acerual on 31 January 2014 The assets of the plan are held separawely from these of the
company. being invested in anits of exempt unit trusts. The plan is funded by the pavment of contributions to
separately admintstered trust funds. The pension costs are determined with the advice ot independent qualified
actuaries on the basis of triennial v aluations using the projected unit eredit method.

* NTL Pension Plan

A subsidiary. Virgin Media Limited. operates a funded pension plan providing detined benetits ("NTL Pension
Plan™). The pension plan was closed to new entrants as of 6 April 1998, The Plan was closed 1o future accrual
on 31 January 2014 The assets of the plan are held separatchy from those of the company. in an independently
administered trust. The plan s funded by the pavment of contributiens to this separately administered trust,
The pension costs are determined with the advice of independent qualilied actuaries on the basts of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method.

The plans® assets are measured at fair value. The plans™ liabilirics are measured using the projected unit method
and discounted at the current rate ef return on a high quality corporate bond.
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28 Pension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

The table below prosides summary information on the group’s defined benefit plans:

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan asscts
Net asset

Net pertodie pension cost

Net defined benefit asset represented by

Net defined benefit hability
Net defined benefit asset

Movements in the defined benefit assets and habilities are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation

2020
£ million
UK
Balance at 1 January (381.0
Included in income
statement
Current admin. service cost -
Past service cost -
[nterest (costyincome (114

Included in OCI

Actuarial {loss) gam artsing from:
Changes in demographic .
assumplions

C hangeg in financial 176.0)
ASSUIMPLLONS

Experience adjustments (2.4
Return on plan assets

excluding intcrest income

Other

Conrributions paid by the

employer

Efteects of movements in

exchange rates

Benetits paid 3

Balance at 31 December {635.5)

2019 2020
£ million £ million
UK Ireland LK
(530.0 (331} 667 .4
- - (1.7
(14.6) {0.7) 13.5
(0.6) - -
{60.3) (4.9 -
0.7 0.2 -
- - 7R}
- - 9
N 19 -
24.0 0.6 {30.2)
(5381.0) (36.0) 727.9

Fair value of plan assets

2020 2019
£ million £ million
{h35.3) (617.0)
7279 6935
924 78.5
(% 0.9
- {7.9)
92 4 ?56.?1__
924 78.5

Net defined benefit

asset/(liability}
2019 2020 2019
£ million £ million £ million
UK [Ireland UK UK Ireland
6197 253 86.4 %97 {7.%)
(1.6) - (L7 (1) -
17.0 0.5 2.1 >4 0.2
- - 34 (0.6) -
- - (76.0h {60.3) (4.9
- - (2.4 .7 (.2
538 2K 718.0 338 2K
(IR 1.7 L9 0.9 1.7
- {1.6) - - 0.3
(224 (0.6) 1.7 1.6 -
667.4 28.1 92.4 86.4 7.9

1999 ntl Pension Scheme and NTL Pension Plan have been disclosed within the "UK™ tigures.
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28 Pension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

Virgin Media [reland Limited Defined Benetit Plan is shown within the “Ircland™ figures m 2019, this was
disposed of with the sale of the group’s subsidiary UPC Broadband [reland Limited on 30 November 2020 (see

note 223,

The group’s pension plan weighted-average asset allocations by asset category at 31 December 2020 and 31

December 20119 were as tollows:

2020

Equities

Property

Curporate bonds
Government bonds
Hedge funds

Insurance policy (buv-in)
Cash and other

Total market value ot assets
Present value of plan liabilitues

Net pension asset

2019

Equities

Property

Corporate bonds
Government bonds
Hedge tfunds

[nsurance policy (buv-in)
Cash and vther

Total market value of assets
Present value of plan habilities

Net pension assct {liabilityy

UK long
term rate
of return

h

— 13 Ja — 2
L DGR L S s
o

70

UK long
term rate
of return

+.7%
4.7%,
1.2%
0.7
4.2%,
1.2%0

()_70 it

Ireland
long term

rate of

UK total return

£ million
817 2.2,
2.3 -
196.7 2.4,
6.0 -
80.2 -
182.5 -
460 2.2

6674

(5810

6.4

UK total

£ million
198.5
1.9
3397
571

0.1
1951
(64.5)

727.9

{635.5)

924

Ireland total

£ million
10.8




Virgin Media Finance PLC
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2020

28 Pension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
The trustces of NTL Pension Plan purchased an insurance contract that will pay an income stream to the plan
which is expected to match all future cash ourflows in respect of certain liabilities. The fair value of this
Imsurance contract is presented as an asset of the plan and 15 measured based on the future cash tlows w0 be

received under the contract discounted using the same discount rate used to meusure the associated liabilities.

Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

The weighted-average assurmptions used to detcrmine net periodic benefit costs were as tollows:

2020 2019

UK UK  lreland
Discount rate 1.2% 200 1.2%
Future salary incrcascs 2.9% 294 0.0%

The assumptions relating to longevity underbying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on
standard actuarial mortality tables and in¢lude an allowance for tuture improvements in longevity. The
assumptions are equivalent to expecting a 60-vear old to live for a number of vears as foilows:

UK
2020 2019
Current pensioner aged 60 (male) 272 273
Current pensioner aged 60 {female) 291 291
Future retiree upon reaching 60 (malc) 287 288
Future retiree upon reaching 60 { female) e 306

Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benetit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following
table summarises how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have
increased {decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by .23 percent,

2020 2019

UK LK Ireland
Discount rate (26.3) (211} (1.4
[nflation 2.6 23 0.4

In valuing the assets of the UK pension fund at 31 December 2020, mortality assumptions have been made as
indicated above, I1 life expectancy had been changed to assume that all members of the fund lived for one year
longer. the value of the reported liabilities at 31 December 2020 would have increused by £28.6 million betore
deterred tax for the UK pensions.

The above sensinvities are based on the average duration of the benetit obligation determined at the date of the
last full actuarial valuation at 31 December 2020 and are applied to adjust the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period for the assumptions concerned. Whilst the analysis does not take account of the full
distribution of cash flows expected under the plan. it does provide an approximation te the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

Funding
The group expects to contribute £2.3 million w the defined benetit pension plans in 2021,
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29 Related party transactions

During the vear, the group entered into transactions in the ordinary course of business with other related partics.
Transactions entered into during the vear, and trading balances outstanding at 31 December with other related
parties. are as follows:

Services Interest Ameunts Amounts
rendered by charged to owed by owed to
related related related related
party party party party
Reluted party £ million £ million £ million £ million
Parent undertakings
2020 - - 49012 (160.4)
2019 - - - (522
Fellow subsidiary
undertakings
2020 - - 248 -
2019 - - 1.6 -
Liberty Global group
undertakings
2020 {3257 276.9 1.695 4 (90.0)
2019 (2254 2%3 333 (43.9)

Parent undertakings

The group is headed by Virgin Media Inc. and has been indebted t the group. which receives interest income
according to the terms of cach lean agreement. The group recharges the ultimate parent company for certain
costs directly atrributed to the operations of that company including allocable payroll and related expenses.

Fellow subsidiary undertakings

The net recevery of debts by Virgin Media Limited relating to the customers of fellow subsidiary undertakings,
namely Virgin Media Mobile Finance Limited. through centralised debt collection and treasury operations.
generates trading balances which are offset by operating expenses and capital purchases that are also recharged
by Virgin Media Limited. Virgin Media Limited 1s an indirect subsidiary of the company whilst Virgin Media
Mobile Finance Limited 1s outside the group headed by the company.

Libertny Group underivkings

The company’s ultimate parent is Liberty Global ple which also controls the group and the Virgin Media group.
Certain debt raised by the group has been passed up to Liberty Global entities that sit owtside the Virgin Media
group. The debt of £4.798.7 million (see note 12) attracts inteeest which Liberty Global entities pay to the group
according to the terms of cach loan arrangement.

Tormy and conditions of transactians with related parties

The terms of the loans payable to parent undertakings are as outlined in note 16, Certain expensces arc
specificaily attributable to cach company in the group. Where costs are incurred by Virgin Media Limited on
hehalt of other group companies. expenses are allocated to the other group cempanies on a basis that. in the
opinion of the directors. 15 reasonable.
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29 Related party transactions (continued)

Compensation of key management personnel (including directors)
The compensation paid or pavable to kev management for employee services 1s shown below:

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Short-term employee benelits 8.0 10.5
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
Non-cquity incentise plan 0.3 33
Sharc bascd payments 1.8 4.6
13.2 18.3

Kev management represents directors and members of Virgin Media's executive commuitlee.

30 Principal subsidiary undertakings

The investments in which the group held at least 207 of the nominal value of any class of share capital, all of
which are unlisted. are as tollows. All are registered in England and Wales unless otherwise noted.

Proportion
of
voling rights
and
Subsidiary Holding  shares held Prin_c‘i;_)a/
: dciivites
Direct shareholdings of Virgin Media Finance PLC
Virgin Media [nvestment Holdings Limited Ordinary 1009 Finance
Indirect shareholdings
nil Business Limited Ordinarv 100% Telecoms
ntl CableComms Group Limited Ordinary 100%, Holding
ntl Glasgow X Ordinary 56% Telecoms
ntl Kirklees Ordinary 52% Telecoms
Virgin Media Business Limited Ordinary 100%, Telecoms
Virgin Media Investments Limited Ordinarv 100% Finance
Virgin Media Limited Ordinary 100%, Telecoms
Virgin Media Payments Limited Ordinary 1008 Collecuons
Virgin Media Senior Investments Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Virgin Media Wholesale Limited Ordinary 100 Telecoms
Virgin Mobile Telecoms Lunited Ordinary 100 Telecoms
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30 Principal subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 349 { C ) of the Companies Act 2006
Proportion
of
voting rights
and
Holding  shares held Principal

detiviles

Substdiary
BCMYV Limited Ordinary 1004 Dormant
Birmimgham Cable Limited o Ordinary 100%% Dormant
Cable London Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
CableTel Herts and Beds Limited Ordinary 100%, Dormant
CableTel Northern Ireland Limited 3 Ordinary 100% Dormant
CableTel Surrey and Hampshire Limited Ordinary 100% Dormant
Eurobeil i Holdings) Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
ntt (B) Limued Ordinary 100% Holding
ntl (Broadland) Limited Ordinary 100°%, Dormant
ntl (CWC) Corporation Limited b Ordinary 100% Durmant
ntl {South East) Limited Ordinary 100%, Dormant
ntl (V) Ordinary 100%, Dormant
ntl CableComms Surrey Ordinary 100%, Dormant
ntl Midlands Limited Ordinary 101025 Dormant
nt! National Networks Limited Ordinary 100 Dormant
ntl Pension Trustees I Limited Ordinary 100", Gorporate
y Trustee
ntl Pension Trustees Limited Ordinary 10605 Corporate
v Trustee
ntl South Central Limited Ordinary 100%% Dormant
ntl Telecom Services Limited Ordinary 100%, Dormant
ntl Trustees Limited Ordinary 1002, Corporate
- Trusiee
Z:?::;;t Communications (Dundee & Perth) z Ordinary 100° Dormant
Telewest Communications (Glenrothes) Limited = Ordinary 1009%% Dormant
I\;eii:\;'?itnf;:lmumcanons (Midlands and North Ordinary L00% Dorrant
Telewest Communications {North East) Limited [} Ordinary 1004 Dormant
Telewest Communications {Scotland) Limited i Ordmarv 100%, Dormant
Telewest Communications {South Easty Limited o Ordinary 100%, Dormant
Telewest Communications (South Westy Limited (5} Ordinary L0, Dormant
Telewest Communications ( Tvneside) Limited D Ordinary N Dormant
Telewest Communications Cable Limited Ordinary 10075 Dormant
Theseus No. 1 Limired Ordinary 100°, Holding
Theseus No.2 Limited Ordinary 1009 Holding
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30 Principal subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 349 ( C ) of the Companies Act 2006 (continued)

Virgin Media Employvee Medical Frust Limited Ordinary L7, Corporate
- ! . Trustee
Virgin Media PCHC II Linuted ® Ordinary 100 Dormant
Virgin Media PCHC Limited Ordinary L00O%% Dormant
VM Transters (No 4) Limited Ordinary 100 Dormant
Yorkshire Cable Communications Limited Ordinary 1002 Dormam
[ndirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 479 { A ) of the Companies Act 2(H06
Proportion
of
voling rights
and
Holding  shares held £ :i’;:ﬁ i‘f
Subsidiary
Bitbuzz UK Limited Ordinary LOO%, Telecoms
Cable on Demand Limited Ordinary 100%% Dormant
Channel 6 Broadcasting Limited k4 Ordinary 100% Telecoms
Cullen Broadcasting Limited by Ordinary L00% Telecoms
Flextech Limited Ordinary 100%, Dormant
General Cable Limited Ordinary 1002 Holding
Kish Media Limited bd Ordinary 100)%% Dormant
Matcheo Limited Ordinary 76% Dormant
ntl {CWC) Limited i Ordinary 100%, Dormant
NTL CableCommys Group, LLC = Common stock 106%% Dormant
ntl Communications Services Limited Ordinarv 100% Holding
ntl Glasgow Holdings Limited u Ordinary 1% Holding
ntl Kirklees Holdings Limited n Ordinary 5% Holding
ntl Rectangle Limited Ordinary 100 Holding
Telewest Communications Networks Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Telewest Limited Ordinary 100% Holding
Tullamore Beta Limured W Ordinary 1009 Helding
TV Three Enterprises Limited ¥ Ordinary 100%, Dormant
TV Three Sales Limited W Ordinary LO0Y, Dormant
Virgin Media Bristol LLC = Common stock 10O Finance
Virgin Media Finco 2 Limited Ordinary 1007, Non-Trading
Virgim Media Finco Limited Ordinary 1009, Finance
Virgin Media Intermediary Purchaser Limited Ordinary 100% Non-Trading
Virgin Media Opcrations Limited Ordinary 1008 Holding
Virgin Med:a Secretaries Limited Ordinarv 16005 Dormant
Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC Ordinary 1001% Finance
Virgin Media SFA Finance Limited Ordinarv 1002 Finance
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30 Principal subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Indirect shareholdings - guaranteed under section 479 ( A ) of the Companics Act 2006 (continued)
Virgin Media Television Limited ¥ Ordinarv 160° Telecoms

Virgin Media Trade Receivables Intermediary

. . . Ordinary 100" Non-Trading
Financing Limited N
Virgin Wiki Limited Ordinary 100%, Telecoms
Virgin Media Ireland Group Limited Ordinary 1007 o Holding

All companies are registered at 500 Brook Drive, Reading, United Kingdem, RG2 6ULL unless
otherwisc noted below:
B3 Unit 3. Blackstaff Road, Kennedy Way Industrial Estate. Belfast. BT11 9AP
Macken House, 39 40 Mayor Strect Upper., Dublin 1. D1 COWX

= I South Gyle Crescent Lane. Edinburgh, EHI2 9EG

= 251 Little Falls Drive. Wilmington, DE 19808, Thesc entities are registered in the USA.
u Remainder of shares held by group undertakings

o Dissolved subsequent te the year end

The company has ssued a guarantee under Scetion 394 C) of the Companies Act 2006 tor the vear ended 31
December 2020 in respect of the wholly owned dormant subsidiaries listed ahove in section “Indireet
shareholdings - guarantced under Scction 394(C) of the Companies Act 2006™. The company guarantees all
outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary company is subject to at 31 December 20200 until they are
satisfied in tull and the guarantee is enforceable against the company by any person o whom the subsidiary
company is liable in respect of thoese liabilittes. These dormant subsidiaries have taken advantage of the
cxemption from preparing indnodual accounts for the vear ended 3) December 2020 by virtue of Scction
394(A) of the Companies Act 2006,

The guarantee under Section 394(C) of the Companies Act 2006 1s m respect ot the above subsidiaries. the
majority of which are 100% owned. either directly or indirectly.

The company has issued a guarantee under Scetton +79(C) of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of the subsidiaries listed above in section “Indirect shareholdings — guaranteed under
Secuon 479 C) of the Companies Act 20067, The company guarantees all ousstanding liabihities to which the
subsidiary company 13 subject to at 31 December 2020, until they are satistied in full and the guarantee s
entorccable against the company by any persen to whom the subsidiary company is liable in respect of those
liabilities. These active subsidiaries have taken advantage of the exempuion tfrom audit ot individual accounts
tor the year ended 31 December 2020 by virue of Section 479(A) ot the Companies Act 2006.

The guarantee under Section 479(C) of the Companics Act 2006 is in respect of the above subsidiaries. the
majority of which are 100% owned. cither dircetly or indirectly.

Parent undertaking and contrelling party

The company's immediate parent undertaking v Virgin Media Communications Limted.

The smallest and largest group of which the company 1s a member and 1n to which the company’s accounts
were consolidated at 31 December 2020 are combined tinancial statements of the “Virgin Media Group’ and the
consolidated acceounts of Liberty Global ple. respectively.

The company's ultimate parent undertaking and contrelling party at 31 December 202¢) was Liberty Global ple.
Copies of the combined financial statements ot the “Virgin Media Group’ and the consolidated accounts of

Liberty Global ple are available on Liberty Gilobal’s website at www liberty global.com or from the company
secretary. Liberty Global ple. Grittin House, 161 Hammersmith Road. London, United Kingdom. Wé 8BS,
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32 Post Balance Sheet Events

Joint venture transactions

On 7 May 2020. Liberty Global entered into a Contnbution Agreement with, among others, Telefonica, SA
(Teletonica). Pursuant to this agreement. Liberty Global and Telefonica agreed to form a 5G:50) joint venture,
which will combine Virgin Media's operations in the UK with Teleforica’s mobile business in the UK to create
a nationwide integrated communicatnons provider. The formation of the juint venture was completed on 1 June
2021,

On 28 Febiuay 2021 Liberty Global entered into a contribution agreement with Echo Bidco SARL. Pursuant to
this agreement, Liberty Global and Echo Bidco SARL agreed to form a 50:50 joint venture, which will manage
a porttolio of investment properties.

Disposal of investment in subsidiaries

On 4 March 2021, as part of a wider group restructure. the group dispused of its investment in Cullen
Broadeasting Limited and Tullamore Beta Limited.
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Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiarics

Current assets

Debtors: amounts falling due after more than vne vear
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within vne year

Net current assets

Tatal assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts talling due atter more than one vear
Net Liabilities

Capital and reserves
Ordinary sharcs

Share pretnium account
Capital contribution
Accumulated losscs

Shareholders' deficit

The notes on pages 80 to 89 torm part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the board and were signed on its behall on 2%

June 2021,

-

L Milner
Director

Company Registration Number: (33061787

Notes

o

10
11

11

2020
£ million

4.699 4

7.9
1.966.5
0.7

19751
(398.3)

13708

6.076.2

(9.207.3)

(31311

(3.131.H

2019
£ million

4.699.4

339
2.000.0

1.705.8

6.405.2

(9.013.3)

(2.608.3})

G.!
6239
50
$3.239.3)

(2.608.3)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 24020

Share Profit
Share premium  Capital and loss
capital account contribution  account Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
At t Januarv 2020 0.1 6259 50 (3.239.3)  (2.608.3)

Comprehensive income for the vear

Loss for the vear - - - (522.%8) {322.8)

As at December 2020 0.1 6259 A (3.762.1)  (3,131.1)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Share Profit
Share premium  Capital and loss
capital account contribution  account Total
£ million £ million £ millien £ million £ millien
At 1 January 2019 .1 6259 5.0 (2.813.2)  (2.182.2

Comprehensive income for the vear

Loss tor the vear - - - (426.1) (426.1)

As at December 2019 0.1 6259 5.0 (3.239.3)  (2.608.3)

The notes on pages 80 to 89 form part ot these Hnancial statements.
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1 Company information

Virgin Media Finance PLC (the “company ™} 15 a private company incorporated. domiciled and registered in the
UK. The registered number is 03061787 and the registered address is 300 Brook Drive. Reading. Untuted Kingdom.
RG2 61T

2 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies s set out below. All accounting pelicics have been applied
consistently. unless noted befow.

21 Basis of accounting

These financial statcments were preparcd on @ going concern basis and under the histonical cost basis in
accordance with the Companics Act 2006 und the Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosurc
Framework {("FRS 101™).

In preparing these financial statements. the company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of Companies Act 2006,
and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

The company’s ultimate parent undertaking. Liberty Global ple. includes the company in its consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements of Liberty Global ple are prepared i accordance with
Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards and are available to the public and may be obtained trom Liberty
Global’s website at www . libertyglobal.com.

In these tinancial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the
following disclosures. where required equivalent disclosures are included within the company’s consolidated
financial statements:

s acash flow statement and related notes:

e disclosures i respect of related party transactions with fellow group undertakings:

¢ disclosures in respect of capital management:

e the cffects of new but not et etfective International Accounting Standards:

» disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel; and

o disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel services to
the company.

As the consolidated financial statements of the company include the equivalent disclosures, the company has
also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures:

s [FRS 2 share based payments in respect of group settled share based pavments: and
o certain disclosures required by [FRS 13 fur value measurement and the disclosures required by [FRS 7
financial nstrument disclosures.

No profit and loss account is presented by the company as permitted by Scction 408 ot the Compantes Act 2006,
22 Going concern

The finangial statements have been approyed on the basis that the company remains a going concern, The followmg
paragraphs summarise the basis on which the directors have reached their conclusion.

It is Virmin Media’s practice for operational and financial management to be undertaken ar a group level rather than
for individual entities that are whollv owned by the group. Treasury operations and cash management for all of
Liberty Global's wholly owned subsidiarics are managed on a Liberty Global group basis. As part of normal
business practice. regular cash tlow forecasts for both short and long term commitments are undertaken at group
level.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Going concern (continued)

Forecasts and projections prepared for the Virgin Media group as a whole, indicate that cash on hand. together with
cash trom operations, repayment ol amounts duc 1o Virgin Media {rom the Liberty Global group and undrawn
revolving credit tacilities, are expected to be sutficient for the Virgin Media group’s and hence the company's cash
requirements through to at least 12 menths trom the approval ot these financial statements.

Whilst the detailed cash tlow forecasts are prepared at the group level. the directors have also assessed the position
ot the company. Notwithstanding net labilitnes of £3.131.1 million as at 31 December 2020 and a loss for the vear
end of £322.8 million. this assessment indicates that. tuking account of reasonably possible downsides. the company
will have sufticient resources. through funding from fellow subsidiary companies 1o meet its liabilities as they fall
due for that period. Virgin Media Inc. has indicated its intention to continue to make such funds available to the
company as are ncceded.

As with any company placing rehance on other group entities for financial support. the directors acknowledge that
there can be ne certainty that this support will continue although. at the date of approval of these financial
statements. they have no reason to believe that it will not do so. Consequently . the directors are confident that the
company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due tor ai least 12 moenths from the
date of approval of the financial statements and have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
Consideration of the on-going impact of COVID-19 has not altered this conclusion,

2.3 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transactiorn. Monetary assets and
labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange difterences are taken to the prefit and loss account.

2.4 Loans and borrowings

Al loans and borrowings are witially recognised at tair value less directly atinbutable transaction costs. After initial
recognition. interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the cffective
interest method.

Gams and losses arising on the repurchase. settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recognised
respectively in finance income and (inance costs using the effective interest method.

Finance costs which are incurred in connection with the issuance of debt are deferred and set off against the
borrowings to which they relate. Deferred finance costs are amortised over the term of the related debt using the
eftective interest method.

Borrowings arc classificd as creditors: amounts falling due within one year unless the company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the hability tor at least 12 months after the reporting period in which case they are
classitied as creditors: amounts falfing due after more than one yvear.

2.5 Investments

Investments are recorded at cost less provision for impairment as appropriate. The company assesses al cach
reporting date whether there is an indicatien that an investment may be impaired. If any such indication exists. the
company makes an estimalte of the investment's recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an mvestment
exceeds its recoverable amount. the investment is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there was an event not foreseen in the oniginal
impairment calculations. such as a change in use of the investment or a change 1z ecconomie conditions.  The
reversal of impairment loss would be to the extent of the lower of the recoverable amount and the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised tor the investment in prior veurs.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an ongmal maturity of
three months or less.
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2.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The group has established policies and procedures to govern the management of 1S exposure to interest rate and
loreign currency exchange rate risks. through the use ol derivative financial instruments. including interest rate
sWaps. cross-currency interesl rate swaps and foreign currency torward rate contracts.

Derisative financial instruments arc wnitially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derrvative contract is
eniercd into and are subscquently remeasured ar fair value at cach balance sheet date.

Derivatives are recognised as financial assets when the tair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negame.

The forcign currency forward rate contracts. interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued
using internal models based on observable inputs. counterparty valuations or market transactions in either the listed
or over-the-counter markets. adjusted for non-performance risk. Non-pertormance risk 15 based upon quoted credit
detault spreads for counterparties to the contracts and swaps. Derivative contracts which are subject 1o master
netling arrangements are not offser and have not provided. nor require. cash collateral with any counterparty.

While these imstruments are subject w the risk of loss from changes in exchange rates and interest rates. these losses
would generally be offset by gains in the related exposures. Financial nstruments are only used o hedge underlying
cemmerctal expusures. The group does not enter inte derivative financial instruments tor speculative trading
purposes, nor does it cnter into derivative financial instruments with a level ot complexity or with a risk that is
greater than the exposure to be managed.

For derivatives which are designated as hedges, the hedging relationship is decumented at its inception. This
documentation identifies the hedging instrument. the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the nisk being hedged
and how effectiveness will be measured throughout its duration. Such hedges arc expected at inception to be highly
ettective,

The group designates certain derivatives as either tuir value hedges. when hedging exposure to variability in the fair
value of recogmised assets or liabilitics or firm commitments. or as cashflow hedges. when hedging exposure to
variabifity in cash flows thar are cither attributable to a parncular risk associated with a recognised asset or Liability
or 4 highly probable forecast transaction.

Derivatives that arc not part of an eftective hedging relationship. as set out in [TFRS 9. must be classified as held for
trading and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The treatment of gains and losses ansing from revalung derivatives designated as hedging mstruments depends
upon the nature of the hedging relationship and are treated as tollows:

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges. the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion s recognised i profit or loss. Amounts taken to other
comprehensive income are reclassified o the protit and loss account when the hedged transaction 1s recognised in
profit or loss, such as when a forecast sale or purchase vecurs. in the same line of the profit and loss account as the
recognised hedged item. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or liability. the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred to the ininal measurement ot the cost of the non-tinancial asset or
Irabslity,

ftf a forccast ransaction 15 no longer expected w0 occur. the gain or loss accumulated in cquity is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. If the hedging instnunent expires or 1s sold, erminated or exercised without
replacement or rollover. or it its designation as a hedge is revoked. amounts previeusly recognised in other
comprehensive inceme remain in equity untl the torecast transaction occurs and are reclassified to the protit and
loss account,
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedging {continued}
Fair value hedges

For fair value hedges. the changes in the fair value of the hedging mstrument are recognised in profit or loss
immediately. together with anv changes in the fair value ot the hedged asset or hability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. The change in the tair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged 1em attributable te
the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the profitund loss account relating to the hedged item.

It the hedging instrument expires or is sold. terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover. or it its
designation as a hedge is revoked. then the fair vatue adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item ansing
from the hedged risk 15 amortised to protit or loss trom that date.

3  Judgements in applying accounting policies and Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these (nancial statements. management has made estimates and judgements that affect the application
ot the company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilities. inceme and expenses.

Estimates and assumptions

Carrying value of investments

[nvestments are held at cost less any necessary provision for impairment. Where the impairment assessment did not
provide any indication of impairment. no provision is required. If any such indications exist, the carrving value of
an investment 1s written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverability of intercompany receivables

Intercompany receivables are stated at their recoverable ameunt less any necessary provision. Recoverability of
intercompany receivables is assessed annually and a provision is recognised if any indications exist that the
recenvables are not considered recoverable.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Management uses valuation technigues to determine the tair value of financial instruments (where active market
quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument.
Management hases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case
management uses the best information available, Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would
be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date (see note 9).
4 Laoss attributable to members of the parent company
The loss in the accounts of the parent company was £322.8 million (2019: £426.1 million).
5 Llovestments in subsidiaries

£ miilion
Cost and net book value:

At 1 January 2020 1,699 4
At 31 December 2020 4.699 4

Net book value:
At 31 December 2020 +.699 4
At 31 December 2019 4.699.4
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5 Investments in subsidiaries {(continued)

Details of the principal investments in which the greup or the company holds at least 20%, of the nominal value of
any class of share capital. all of which are unlisted. ¢an be seen in nete to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors the aggregate value ef the investments in subsidiary undertakings 15 not less than the
amount at which they are stated in the financial statements.

6  Debtors
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Due after one vear

Luvan notes due from group undertakings 1.933.2 1.833.0
Deryative financial assets 333 YA
1.966.5 2.000.0

Due within one vear
Dernis amve financial assets 7.9 33.9

Amounts owed by group undertakings due after vne year represent lean notes which had a carrying value of
£1.933.2 million (2019 - £1.833.0 million) at the balunce sheet date. Loan notes are denominated in sterling.
bear interest of 4.95% {subject to adjustment) and mature in April 2026.

7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one vear

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Derivative financial liabilities 350 6.6
Interest on loan netes due to group undertakings 83.3 492
Interest payvable on sentur notes 27.2 231
Amounts owed to group undertakings 76.6 74.8
Loan notes due 1 group undertakings 376.2 175.8
3983 3293

Loan notes due to group undertakings due withim cne vear include loan notes which had a carrving value of
£376.2 million (2019 - £175.8 million) at the balance sheet date. Loan notes are denominated in sterling and US
dollar, bear interest ranging from {.32"q to 7.33" and arc repayable on demand.

Amounts owed to group undertakings arc unsecured. interest-tree and repavable on demand.
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8 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear

2020 2019

£ million £ million

Luan notes due to group undertakings 7.996.6 7.789.7
Senior notes 1.119.5 1.187.3
Dervatnve financial labilities 91.2 36.5
92073 90133

Toan notes due to gronp undertakings falling duc after mere than one vear had a carrying value ol £7,996.6
million (2019 - £7.789.7) at the balance sheet date. Loan notes are denominated in sterling and US dollar, bear
interest at -4.89% {subject 10 adjustment), and mature between April 2026 and January 2028,

Borrowings are repayable as follows:

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Amounts falling due:
In more than two years but not more than five vears - 309.2
In more than five vears v.lle.l 84678
9.116.1 8.977.0
Borrowings not wholly repavable within five years are as follows:
2020 2019
£ million £ million
Loan notes duce o group undertakings 7.996.6 77897
Senior notes 1.119.5 67%.1
9.116.1 84678
2020 2019

Total borrowings comprise:

£ million

£ million

5.25% U.S. dollar senior notes due 2022 - 388
3.875%, U.S. dollar senior notes due 2022 - 54.0
5.125%, Sterling sentor notes due 2022 - 441
6.00% LS. dollar semor notes due 2024 - 3747
5.75%, US dollar scnior notes due 2025 - 2631
4.3% Euroe senior notes due 2025 - IR94
5.0 U.S. dollar scnior notes due 2030 6793 -
3.753%, Euro senior notes due 2030 447 8 -
AN 1.194.1
Less 18sue cosls (7.6) (6.8)
TOL195 10873

Total senior notes
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8

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear (continued)
The company has the following senior notes in issue as at 31 Deeember 2020

1) 5.00% senier noles due 15 July 2030 the principal amount at maturity is $675.0 million. Interest is pavable
semi-annually on 15 January and 135 July commencing 15 January 2021

21 3.75% senior notes due 15 July 2030 the principal amount at maturity is €300.0 nmullion. Interest is payable
semi-annually on 15 January and 13 July commencing |5 January 2621

Virgin Media Inc.. a parent company of the company. and all the intermediate holding companics. guarantee
the senior notes on a semor basis. Virgin Media Investment Holdings Limited. @ direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the company. guarantees the senior notes on a senior subordinated basis and has no signiticant
assets of its own other than 1ts investments in its subsidiaries. The company has given a full and unconditional
guarantee of all amounts payable under the terms ot the Virgin Media group’s senior secured credit facility and
senior secured notes.

Financial instruments

2020 2019
£ million £ million
Financial assets

Financial asscts measured at tair value through profit or loss 41.1 200.9
Financial asscts that are debt instruments mecasured at amortised cost LQ__,ES.% 1“833_.()
[.974.4 20339

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (126.2) (43.1)
Financial liabilities measured at amortsed cost {9.679.4) {9.299 9}

19.505.6) (9.343.40)

Financial asscts measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise interest rate swaps and ¢ross currency
INETest rate swaps.

Financial assets measured at amortised c¢ost comprise amounts owed by group undenakings.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through protit or loss comprise interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps and certain other loans.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise senior secured notes net of issue costs, interest
pavable on senior notes. amounts owed to group undertakings. accruals and deferred income.

Dernative financial instruments are designed to mitigate the risks expenienced by the company. The company
has obligatiens in a combination of U.S. dollars and sterling at fixed and variable interest rates As a result. the
company is exposed to vartabilite in s cash flows and carnings resulting trom changes in foreign currency
cxchange rates and interest rats,

The company's objective in managing its ¢xposure to interest rate and foreign curreney exchange rates is to
decrease the volatility of it camnings and cash flows caused by changes in the underlying rates, The company
has established policies and procedures W govern these exposures and has entered into derivative financial
instruments including interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest swaps and forcign curreney forward rate
contracts. It is the company's policy not to enter into derivative tinancial instruments for speculative trading
purposes. nor to enter inte derivative tinancial instruments with a level of complexity or with a risk that is
greater than the exposure to be managed. The amounts below include amounts relating to short term as well as
long term creditors.

Financial and operational risk management 1s undertaken as part of the group’s operations as a whole. These are
considered in more detail in the consehdated financial statements of the group.
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11

Financial instruments (continued)

The derivative financiai instruments held by the company are recorded at fair value on the balance sheet in
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The tair values of these derivative financial instruments are
valued using internal models based on observable inputs. counterparty valuations. or market transactions n
either the listed or over-the counter markets, adjusted tor non-performance risk.

Cross currency swap contracts
The company holds the following outstanding swap agreements with another company within the Virgin Media
LTOUp:

Final Hedge type Notional amount  Notional amount  Intercst rate due  Interest rate due
maturity due to due from to counterparty  from counterparty
date counterparty counterparty
‘000 000

Feb-22 Nt designated £63.271 £44.362 3.3% 3.7%
Feb-22 Not designated S74.310 £52.219 +.9% 340
Oct-24 Not designated S 497,000 £319.250 6.0% 4.5%
Jan-26 Not designated $3.300.000 £2.318.963 3.5% 3.9%

[nterest rate swap contracts
The company holds the following outstanding swap agreements with another company within the Virgin Media
group:

Final Hedge type Notional amount  Notional amount Interest rate due Interest rate due
maturity due to due from fo counterparty from counterparty
date counterparty ceunterparty

000 000
Jan-27 Not designated £400.000 £400.000} +4.29% 4800,
Nov-27 Not designated £300.000 £300.000 429 4.83%

Share capital

£ 000 £ 000
Allonted. called up and fully paid:
76.184 (2019 76.184) ordinary shares of £1 cach 76 76

Accumulated losses

Share capital

The balance classitied as share capital represents the nominal value on issue of the company’s share capital.
comprising £1 ordinary shares.

Share premium account

Includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted frem share premium.
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14

Accumulated losses {continued)

Capital conrviburion
The £5 million capital contribution was recenved from Virgin Media Communications Limited as part of a
comprehensive group restructuring in 2006,

decumulared losses
Includes afl current and prior period retained profits and losses net of dividends paid.

Auditor’s and directors’ remuneration

Fees paid to KPMG LLP for non-audit services o the parent company itself are not disclosed in the individual
accounts of Virgin Media Finance PLC because group financial statements are prepared which disclose such
fees on a consolidated basis.

The dircctors received no remuneration for qualitying services as direciors of this company. All directors’
remuneration is paid and disclosed in the group’s financial statements.

Guarantees

The company. aleng with fellow group undertakings. is party to a senior sccured credit facility with a syndicate
of banks. As at 31 December 2020, this comprised term tacilities that amouried to £3.9582 nullion (2019 -
£4. 015 million) and revolving credit (acilives of £1.000 milhon (2019 - £1.000 million). Borrow ings under the
tacilities are secured against the assets of certain members of the group including those of this company.

In addition. a tellow group undertaking has issued senior secured notes which. subject to certain exceptions.
share the same guarantees and security which have been granted in favour of the senior sccured credit factlity.
The amount outstanding under the senior sceured notes at 31 December 2020 amounted to £4.400 mullion
{2019 - £4.491 million). Borrowings under the netes are sccured against the assets ol certain members of the
group including those of this company .

Furthermore. a fellow group undertaking has 1ssued senior notes for which the company, along with certain
fellow group undertakings. has guaranteed the notes on a senior subordinated basis. The amount outstanding
under the senior notes as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately £1.127 rullion (2019 - £1.194
millien).

The company has joint and several liabilities under a group VAT registration.
Parent undertaking and controlling party
The company's immediate parent undertaking is Virgin Media Communications Limited.

The smallest and largest groups of which the company 15 4 member and in to which the company’s accounts
were consohdared at 3] December 2020 are combined financial statements of the “Virgin Media Group” and the
consolidated accounts of Liberty Global plc. respectively

The company's ultimate parcnt undertaking and controlling party at 3! December 2020 was Libertv Global ple.
Caopies of the combined financial statements of the "Virgin Media Group® and the consolidated accounts of

Liberty Global ple are available on Liberty Global™s website at www libertvglobal.com or from the company
secretary. Liberty Global ple. Griffin House. 161 Hammersmith Road. London. United Kingdom. W6 8BS.
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L5 Post Balapce Sheet Events

Joint venture transaction

On 7 May 2020, Liberty Global entered into a Contribution Agreement with, among others, Telefonica. SA
i Telefoniea). Pursuant to this agreement. Liberty Global and Telefonies agreed o form a 30:30 jont senture,
which will combine Virgin Media's operations in the UK with Telefonica’s mwobile business in the UK to create
a nationwide integrated communications provider. The formation of the joint venwre was completed on 1 June
2021,
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